
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, April 17, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Jeff Hart 

Pledge of Allegiance led by City Clerk Heather Soyars 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 3, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

2. Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $18,140.70 Texarkana Regional Airport 

from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Acting City Manager/Finance Director TyRhonda 

Henderson  

3. Adopt a Resolution to accept a reimbursable, non-matching Certified Local Government grant 

to conduct a window restoration workshop. (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract for the U of 

A Way Sewer Extension Project. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

REGULAR 

5. Adopt a Resolution to purchase nine (9) 2023 Ford Police Vehicles from McLarty Ford. 

(TAPD) Assistant Chief Bobby Jordan  

6. Adopt a Resolution approving the salary of the Acting City Manager effective from the date 

of appointment, April 3, 2023. (BOD)  



 

7. Adopt a Resolution to approve a contribution of $200,000 to the City of Texarkana, Texas, 

for the purchase of Union Station as part of the Texarkana Union Station redevelopment 

project. (FIN) Acting City Manager/Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson  

8. Adopt an Ordinance waiving competitive bidding and authorizing the Acting City Manager 

to enter into agreements with Harris Systems USA, Inc., for software licenses, services, and 

support related to the CitySuite accounting and human resource management software, 

hosting, and additional years of conversion. (FIN) Acting City Manager/Finance Director 

TyRhonda Henderson  

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, May 1, 2023 

ADJOURN 

 

2023 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmers Market Spring Tailgates & Tables - Saturday, April 22nd - 8AM - 2PM 

OMG Food Festival - Saturday, April 22nd - 11AM - 8PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Opening - Saturday, May 6th - 7AM - Noon 

Four States Auto Museum Spring Car Show - May 6th - 8AM - 4PM 

Cinco De Mayo - Saturday, May 6th - 4PM - 2AM 

Gateway Farmers Market First Responders Day - Saturday, May 20th - 7AM - Noon 

Be Like CJ 5K - Saturday, May 20th - 7:30AM - 10:30PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Grand Opening - Saturday, June 17th - 7AM - Noon 

Sesquicentennial Ball – July 8th 

Gateway Farmers Market National Farmers Market Week - Saturday, July 15th - 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Salsa Contest - Saturday, August 5th - 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Fall Tailgates & Tables - Saturday, September 16th - 8AM - 2PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Holiday Market - Saturday, November 18th - 10AM - 2PM 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th 

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 3, 2023.  (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, April 03, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney 

Harris, Ward 3 Director Stephen Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director 

Danny Jewell, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Joshua Potter, City Clerk Heather Soyars, and Deputy City Clerk 

Jenny Narens.  

Invocation given by Director Danny Jewell. 

Pledge of Allegiance given by Bi-State Justice Building Manager Kristine Barron. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

No one came forward.  

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

 

Amie Moulton TWU 5 Years 

Gary Howard TWU 5 Years 

Darrell Banks TWU 5 Years 

Kyle Sharp TWU 10 Years 

Richard Walker TWU 25 Years 

Christopher Gore TAFD 5 Years 

Ruston Ueckert TAFD 20 Years 

Charles Smith TAFD 25 Years 

Claudia Phelps TAPD 20 Years 

Steven Mitchell TAPD 20 Years 

Les Munn TAPD 20 Years 

David Cornelius PWD 30 Years 

 

2. Proclamation presented to Central Records and Communications (CRC) Commander Wendy 

Herring for Dispatcher's Appreciation Week. 



 

REGULAR I 

3. Resolution No. 2023-23 allowed the Board of Directors to consider interim candidates either 

employed or not employed by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, as Acting City Manager. 

(BOD)  

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Jewell, Seconded by 

Director Hart.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION I 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session I at 6:19 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 6:24 PM, and the following action was taken: 

4. Adopt a Resolution appointing an Acting City Manager. (BOD)  

Motion to appoint TyRhonda Henderson as Acting City Manager made by Director Hollibush, 

Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared TyRhonda Henderson as Acting City Manager. 

*Prepared resolution was not read into the record. *  

CONSENT 

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Brewer.  The 

motion carried and the following items were approved: 

5. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 20, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

REGULAR II 

6. Resolution No. 2023-24 expressed the willingness of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas to 

utilize state aid street monies for the Euclid Street overlay project. (PWD) Public Works 

Director Tyler Richards 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Brewer.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 



 

7. Resolution No. 2023-25 accepted the 2022 audit engagement letter prepared by the accounting 

firm FORVIS, LLP. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Roberts.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Harris 

The motion carried 6-1 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

8. Resolution No. 2023-26 authorized the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract with 

Contech Contractors Inc., for the rehabilitation of Building #3. (ACAC) Animal Care and 

Adoption Center Director Lenor Teague 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Hollibush.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

9. Ordinance No. 13-2023 renamed a section of Preston Street east of Interstate 49, to Magee 

Drive. (Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 



 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

 

10. Ordinance No. 14-2023 rezoned a tract of land located at 5301 Sanderson Lane in Ward 6 

from C-3 Open-display commercial zoning to R-4 Medium density residential in order to build 

a single-family dwelling (Beed). (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Jewell.  

The motion carried 6-1 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Jewell. 

The motion carried 6-1 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

 

11. Ordinance No. 15-2023 granted the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private 

club application for 2415 Arkansas Boulevard, Pelican Fish and Seafood, Inc. (McVay) 

(CCD) 



 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMNENTARY 

Director Harris asked how the new grant writer was progressing because there were several grants 

from the State.  He said he met with some officials last week regarding installation of a flashing 

lights on several streets around the train tracks.  Director Harris said there would be another 

housing grant available in the future for senior citizens.        



 

Assistant Mayor Roberts said in the next 30 days there would be a new Mexican restaurant opening 

on East Street.  

Director Brewer said congress had provided access to federal funds for the City to use.  He said 

the Railway Safety Act would be coming up and to contact your local representatives.     

EXECUTIVE SESSION II 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session II at 7:09 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:36 PM, and the following action was taken: 

12. Resolution No. 2023-27 reappointed Glen Greenwell and Matt Keil to the Civil Service 

Commission for the term April 2023 through 2029. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, 

Seconded by Director Hart.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Harris, 

The motion carried 6-1 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, April 17, 2023 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:39 PM. 

APPROVED this the 17th day of April 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $18,140.70 

Texarkana Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) 

Acting City Manager/Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson  

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Acting City Manager/Finance Director  

REQUEST: Approving the reimbursement of $18,140.70 to the Texarkana Regional 

Airport 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The American Rescue Act Fund was approved by the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Board of Directors on December 20, 2021, with Resolution 

No. 2021-65. This budget allocated $972,090 in 2021 and the remaining 

$656,637 in 2022. Of the total $1,628,727, $294,786.30 has been spent. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to approve the reimbursement of 

$18,140.70 to the Texarkana Regional Airport for engineering services 

in connection with the Landside Development. As this would be 

considered a general governmental service, it is eligible for 

reimbursement due to the City receiving less than $10 million from the 

American Rescue Plan Act.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $18,140.70 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $18,140.70 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and invoice 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

WHEREAS, allocated American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds remain available 

for use in accordance with applicable law and restriction; and 

 WHEREAS, of the total ARPA funds allocated, $1,628.727.00, the total spent to 

date is $294,786.30; and  

 WHEREAS, an eligible use of a portion of such funds is to reimburse the Airport 

Authority for $18,140.70 incurred in connection with Landside Development; and  

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the reimbursement described herein is approved and, further, 

all applicable City budgets are appropriately amended.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

        Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to accept a reimbursable, non-matching Certified 

Local Government grant to conduct a window restoration workshop. 

(PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt a resolution to accept a reimbursable, non-matching Certified 

Local Government grant to conduct a window restoration workshop.    

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Windows are a key feature of design and function for houses in the most 

population-dense area of the City. The homes in the older neighborhoods 

often have windows that need repairs and there are few wood workers 

who can make those repairs in an affordable manner.  Texarkana as a 

Certified Local Government has opportunities to apply for preservation 

grant funds as they may be available on an annual basis. A consultant 

named Bob Yapp who has done window restoration demonstrations at 

national preservation conventions has agreed to hold a three-day 

workshop to train 12 people in window restoration for a fee of $13,800.  

The grant would pay for the expenses of the consultant (including 

materials) over a three-day, hands on window replacement training 

workshop to be held October 21, 22, and 23, on-site.  Staff sent letters to 

all property owners in the Beech Street National Register District 

offering an opportunity for one residence to have window replacement 

in a room that has the required type and number of windows.  All 

responding contacts were evaluated for qualifying candidates and those 

were sent to Mr. Yapp to make a selection as required by the grantor 

prior to considering the request for the grant.  The selection of 1801 

Beech Street was approved as location of the workshop.   Training funds 

in the amount of $571.00 is also in the grant for commissioners and/or 

staff.             

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 



APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt a resolution approving a Certified Local Government grant in the 

amount of $14,371.00.   

EXHIBITS: Resolution, copy of 23-CLG-06 grant, Bob Yapp information, photo 

sheet for project location.   

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, was certified by the State of 

Arkansas/US Department of the Interior as a Certified Local Government on December 11, 

2006; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, has been awarded a reimbursable, 

non-matching Certified Local Government grant (No. 23-CLG-06) from the Arkansas 

Historic Preservation Program (AHPP) in the amount of $14,371.00 to fund preservation 

training for community stakeholders and travel expenses related to a window restoration 

workshop; and  

 WHEREAS, the State of Arkansas requires the City to enter into a contract with 

the AHPP for said grant; and 

 WHEREAS, the City practices good financial stewardship in amending the budget 

to responsibly report on said funds;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, to accept Certified Local Government Grant No. 23-CLG-06 for 

the purposes proposed and terms contained in the attached contract.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

         Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 















































































House under renovation by owner who expects to occupy it in a few months.  Is working with a cabinet maker/contractor 
who might attend the training.  the room with windows will have some minimal furnishings in the future.  The garage will be 
a shop and available for a work area.  Also, porch is 12’ wide to use as needed for work area.   
 

1801 Beech 

 

  
  

 

 

  



  
 
Workshop areas 

 
 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a 

contract for the U of A Way Sewer Extension Project. (TWU) Executive 

Director Gary Smith 

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Gary Smith, P.E., Executive Director 

REQUEST: Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the U of A Way Sewer Extension Project. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the U of A Way Sewer Extension Project in an amount not to exceed 

$242,344.65. Bids were received ATTH 01 Tuesday, March 30, 2023, 

for the U of A Way Sewer Extension Project.  Four contractors bid on 

the project.  Barnwell Industries of Queen City, Texas, was the apparent 

low bidder with a low Base Bid of $242,344.65 ATTH 02.  This project 

consists of the placement of approximately 1,050 linear feet of eight-

inch (8”) sewer main, 1,000 linear feet of two-inch (2”) sewer force 

main, four concrete manholes, one lift station, and all associated work 

and appurtenances. $150,000.00 was budgeted in the Texarkana Water 

Utilities’ 2022-2023 Budget; additional funds are available in the 

Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund.         

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $242,344.65 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $242,344.65 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$242,344.65 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility staff recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, ATTH 01 Bid Summary, and ATTH 02 Bid Tabulation 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, Barnwell Industries of Queen City, Texas, 

submitted the low bid in the amount of $242,344.65 for the U of A Way Sewer Extension 

Project (consisting of the placement of approximately 1,050 linear feet of eight-inch (8”) 

sewer main, 1,000 linear feet of two-inch (2”) sewer force main, four concrete manholes, 

one lift station, and all associated work and appurtenances along U of A Way); and 

 WHEREAS, $150,000.00 was budgeted for this project and the remaining funds 

are available in and can be reallocated from the Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund; and   

 WHEREAS, Texarkana Water Utilities staff recommends approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract 

with Barnwell Industries for the purposes set forth above with funding from the sources so 

indicated.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

         Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



Bid Tabulation
Extend Sewer To Houses Not Served 

U OF A WAY Sewer Extension 
Project No. 61-000-135131-A122341

March 30, 2023

Item Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Total Bid Unit Price Total Bid Unit Price Total Bid Unit Price Total Bid
1 1 LS Mobilization, Bonds, & Submittals $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $10,036.79 $10,036.79 $19,000.00 $19,000.00
2 11 STA Right of Way Preparation $2,000.00 $22,000.00 $965.31 $10,618.41 $800.00 $8,800.00 $500.00 $5,500.00
3 1050 LF Furnish & Install 8" PVC SDR-26 Sewer Pipe By Open Cut $61.00 $64,050.00 $69.38 $72,849.00 $52.00 $54,600.00 $70.00 $73,500.00
4 1000.97 LF Furnish & Install 2" HDPE IPS, SDR-9 Force Main By Bore $34.00 $34,032.98 $38.70 $38,737.54 $45.00 $45,043.65 $25.00 $25,024.25
5 1 EA Furnish & Install Duplex Grinder Pump Station $40,500.00 $40,500.00 $59,322.07 $59,322.07 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $38,560.85 $38,560.85
6 1 EA Furnish & Install Concrete Manhole #1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,696.19 $6,696.19 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
7 1 EA Furnish & Install Concrete Manhole #2 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,306.69 $6,306.69 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
8 1 EA Furnish & Install Concrete Manhole #3 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $6,309.69 $6,309.69 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
9 1 EA Furnish & Install Concrete Manhole #4 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $6,309.69 $6,309.69 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

10 1 LS Furnish & Install Trench Protection $6,100.00 $6,100.00 $2,895.92 $2,895.92 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
11 6 EA Furnish & Install 8" X 4" Sewer Service Wye $2,400.00 $14,400.00 $1,733.52 $10,401.12 $500.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $4,500.00
12 1 EA Core Drill Existing Manhole $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $1,447.96 $1,447.96 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
13 1 EA Connect 2" Force Main to Existing Manhole $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $965.31 $965.31 $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
14 16 LF Furnish & Install 18" RCP Pipe $175.00 $2,800.00 $334.50 $5,352.00 $100.00 $1,600.00 $200.00 $3,200.00

15 1 LS
Furnish & Install all Labor & Materials to Clean &
 Test Manholes $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $723.98 $723.98 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

16 1 LS
Furnish & Install all Labor & Materials to Clean & 
Test Sewer Mains $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $723.98 $723.98 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

17 1 LS Furnish & Install Traffic Control, Signage, and Barricades $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $1,447.96 $1,447.96 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
18 2334 SY Furnish & Install Cellulose Fiber Mulch Seed $8.00 $18,672.00 $2.88 $6,721.92 $1.50 $3,501.00 $0.25 $583.50
19 1050 LF Furnish & Install Silt Fence $8.00 $8,400.00 $4.57 $4,798.50 $4.00 $4,200.00 $1.00 $1,050.00

20 1 LS
Furnish & Install all Labor & Materials to Maintain all 
Erosion Control Measures $3,100.00 $3,100.00 $1,447.96 $1,447.96 $500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Total Amount of Base Bid $261,554.98 $254,112.68 $242,344.65 $184,918.60

BASE BID:
Stone Construction

New Boston, TX

The Total Amount of Base Bid differs from the (Lump Sum) Total Amount of Bid.

BARNWELL Ind.
Texarkana, TX

RBIS, LLC
Texarkana, TX

Certified Correct

_______________________________________

Prepared by Arthur Len McBride III, E.I.T.

Texarkana, AR

Kenneth L. Icenhower, Design Engineer, TWU

KAMPCO, Inc

ATTH02



ATTH 01 

  

 Bid Summary 
 
 

U of A Way Sewer Extension 
 

2:00 P.M. Tuesday, March 30, 2023 
 
 
 

                                    Base Bid   
 

1. RBIS, LLC   $ 261,554.98   
Texarkana, Arkansas   
 

2. Kampco, Inc.   $ 254,112.68   
Texarkana, Arkansas  
 

3. Barnwell Industries   $ 242,344.65   
Queen City, Texas   
 

4. Stone Construction   Bid Rejected   
New Boston, Texas  
 
 
  
 
 
 
                    Time First Bid Opened:  2:00 P.M  
 
                    Number of Bidders:  4 
 
                    Apparent Low Bidder:  Barnwell Industries  
 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to purchase nine (9) 2023 Ford Police Vehicles from 

McLarty Ford. (TAPD) Assistant Chief Bobby Jordan  

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department  

PREPARED BY: Assistant Chief Bobby Jordan  

REQUEST: Purchase nine (9) 2023 Ford Police Vehicles   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Resolution No. 2021-56 for four (4) Ford Police Vehicles in the amount 

of $143,320.00 and Resolution No. 2022-16 for five (5) Ford Police 

vehicles in the amount of $194,150.25 were never purchased from 

McLarty Ford due to no inventory. McLarty Ford has new inventory now 

and TAPD can purchase the nine (9) Ford vehicles at this time.  The 

amount of $339,521.55 was budgeted in previous years. The price for 

the new vehicles has increased to $354,012.21. The additional 

$14,490.66 will be allocated from a police turnback/reserve fund. (See 

purchase request form).    

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $354.012.21 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $339.521.55 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

Included in previous capital budgets 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Resolution, purchase request, and dealership invoices 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions 2021-56 and 2022-16, McLarty Ford submitted the 

low bids to purchase nine (9) Ford Police Vehicles and the Board approved their purchase; and 

 WHEREAS, the nine (9) vehicles were never purchased due to lack of inventory; and  

 WHEREAS, the nine (9) Police Vehicles are now in stock for the price of $354,012.21; 

and   

 WHEREAS, $339,521.55 was previously budgeted and the additional $14,490.66 will be 

allocated from the police turnback/reserve fund; and   

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager is authorized to execute a contract and take 

such action as is reasonably necessary to acquire the vehicles described above and upon the terms 

so indicated.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

       _________________________________ 

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 

























RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, Tyrhonda Henderson was appointed Acting City Manager on April 3, 

2023, and will hold that position until a full-time City Manager can be appointed; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors and Ms. Henderson have reached an 

agreement whereby Ms. Henderson will serve as Acting City Manager on a month-to-

month basis at $66.32 per hour, or $137,945.60 annually, prorated on a monthly basis and 

for any partial month, and paid by the City in bi-weekly installments; and  

 WHEREAS, Ms. Henderson will return to her previous position and salary once a 

full-time City Manager is appointed; and  

 WHEREAS, Ms. Henderson commenced work immediately after being appointed 

on April 3, 2023, and, as a result, compensation back to that date shall be paid by the City;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager Tyrhonda Henderson shall be paid 

upon the terms and conditions stated herein.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

      

 _________________________________ 

                 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to approve a contribution of $200,000 to the City of 

Texarkana, Texas, for the purchase of Union Station as part of the 

Texarkana Union Station redevelopment project. (FIN) Acting City 

Manager/Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson  

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Acting City Manager/Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: On March 3, 2023, the Cities of Texarkana, Arkansas, and Texarkana, 

Texas, and Amtrak signed a letter of intent (LOI) as a good faith 

agreement regarding the Texarkana Union Station redevelopment 

project. The LOI also expresses the intention of Amtrak’s future plans 

for the current operations and the potential to access funds they have 

available to do improvements to Union Station. This site has been around 

since the founding of both Cities, and they realize that its restoration is 

vital to successful downtown revitalization. With potential funds from 

the CRISI grant program for building acquisition and preliminary 

engineering and other potential funds from tax credits and Amtrak’s 

improvement funds, the cities will move the renovation project forward.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $200,000 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $200,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Invoice, and Letter of Intent  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2023, the Cities of Texarkana, Arkansas, Texarkana, 

Texas, and Amtrak signed a Letter of Intent (LOI) as a good faith agreement regarding the 

redevelopment of Union Station in Downtown Texarkana; and 

 WHEREAS, the LOI expresses the intention of Amtrak’s future plans for its 

operations and the potential to access funds they have available to improve Union Station; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the site has been around since the founding of both Cities, and the 

Cities realize that its restoration is vital to successful downtown revitalization; and  

 WHEREAS, the next step in the redevelopment project is the purchase of Union 

Station; and  

WHEREAS, Texarkana, Arkansas, previously budgeted $200,000 to be paid to the 

City of Texarkana, Texas, for the purchase of Union Station; and 

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that $200,000 shall be paid to the City of Texarkana, Texas, for 

the purchase of Union Station.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

       _____________________________ 

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance waiving competitive bidding and authorizing the 

Acting City Manager to enter into agreements with Harris Systems USA, 

Inc., for software licenses, services, and support related to the CitySuite 

accounting and human resource management software, hosting, and 

additional years of conversion. (FIN) Acting City Manager/Finance 

Director TyRhonda Henderson  

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: April 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Acting City Manager/Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: The Finance Department has operated on the same accounting software, 

Harris Select (Wintegrate) since 1999. This software is outdated and 

cannot be upgraded. The software is currently being hosted by TWU on 

an AIX server that is also outdated and will be costly to repair, if 

possible, if it ever goes down. We are asking to waive competitive 

bidding and enter into agreements with Harris Systems USA, Inc., for 

software licenses, services, and support related to the City Suite 

accounting and human resources management software, hosting, and 

additional years of conversion. Harris Systems USA, Inc., is the same 

company the City used to purchase the original software and they have 

the ability to convert and bring forward 4 years of accounting data into 

the new accounting platform without the requirement of dual entries. 

This request includes onetime fees of $4,500 for software licenses, 

$129,325 for professional fees related to software, $18,458 for travel, 

and $27,000 for conversion of 2 additional years of data. The ongoing 

annual fees related to this request are annual support and maintenance of 

$101,212 for the first year and $76,407.82 moving forward and hosting 

of $30,000.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $209,283 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $150,000 



APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$59,283 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Harris Master License Support and Services Agreement, 

Harris Hosting Agreement, and Additional Years Conversion Quote 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING COMPETITIVE 

BIDDING; AUTHORIZING THE ACTING CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS 

WITH HARRIS SYSTEMS USA, INC., FOR 

SOFTWARE LICENSES, SERVICES, AND 

SUPPORT RELATED TO CITYSUITE 

ACCOUNTING AND HUMAN RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE, HOSTING, AND 

ADDITIONAL YEARS OF CONVERSION; FOR 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Department of Texarkana, Arkansas, has operated on the 

same accounting software since 1999 and the software is outdated and cannot be upgraded; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Harris Systems USA, Inc., has submitted a proposal to upgrade the 

Finance Department’s software at a total cost $209,283; and 

 WHEREAS, $150,000 was budgeted for this expense, however, the actual expense 

is $209,283, necessitating an appropriation of $59,283; and  

WHEREAS, Harris Systems USA, Inc., is the same company the City used to 

purchase the original software and they have the unique ability to convert and bring 

forward accounting data into the new accounting platform; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-47-138, the Board of Directors may 

waive the requirements of competitive bidding in exceptional situations where competitive 

bidding is not feasible; and 

 WHEREAS, it is not feasible or practicable to engage in competitive bidding 

because Harris Systems USA, Inc., is considered a sole source; and  

 WHEREAS, in consideration of and for the reasons set forth above, the Finance 

Department does request that any competitive bidding practices otherwise required by 



applicable statue and ordinance be waived as permitted by Ark. Code Ann. § 14-47-138 

and § 2-27 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances and the purchase of the 

items described above be approved; 

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and Staff recommend approval; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

Section 1: The competitive bidding practices contemplated by applicable law 

and ordinance are waived and the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into any 

agreement with Harris Systems USA, Inc., for software licenses, services, and support 

related to CitySuite accounting and human resource management software, hosting, and 

additional years of conversion described herein on the terms, conditions, and in an amount 

not to exceed $209,283. 

Section 2:  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health, and safety (including the need to commence prompt acquisition and installation of 

said needed software and support), and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on 

this emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall 

be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of April, 2023.   

 

       _____________________________ 

           Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 





– Confidential   Page 1 of 14 

Hosting Service Agreement 
This Hosting Service Agreement (the “Agreement”), is entered into on April 17, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 216 Walnut Street, Texarkana, AR 71854  ("Customer") and Harris Systems, USA, Inc., 1224 
Fern Ridge Pkwy., Suite 100, Creve Coeur, MO  6341 ("Harris"). 

WHEREAS: 

(a) Customer has licensed certain Harris software products pursuant to a Software License, Maintenance
and Services Agreement entered into between the parties dated April 17, 2023 (the “Software License
Agreement”);

(b) Customer has requested certain application hosting services for such software from Harris and Harris
has agreed to provide such hosting services to Customer on the terms and conditions set out in this
Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained here and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions

The following terms shall have the meaning set out below, all other capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Section 
shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement: 

(a) “Annual Hosting Fees” means the annual Hosting fees set out in Schedule “A” of this Agreement.

(b) “Change Order” means any written documentation between the Customer and Harris evidencing
their agreement to change particular aspects of this Agreement.

(c) “Completion of Services” means the Professional Services are complete and shall be deemed to
have occurred on the date which the Customer commences using the Hosting Services.

(d) “Confidential Information” means, with respect to a party hereto, all information or material which: is (A) marked
"Confidential," "Restricted," or "Proprietary Information" or other similar marking, (B) known by the parties to be
considered confidential, proprietary, or is confidential under federal or state law or (C) which should be known or
understood to be confidential or proprietary by an individual exercising reasonable commercial judgment in the
circumstances. Confidential Information of Harris shall include, without limitation, the Software, the
Documentation, and any information with respect to the Hosting Services that Harris may provide to Customer
from time to time, including without limitation, all information disclosed by Harris relating to the security of its
facilities, computer systems and products.  Confidential Information does not include information to the extent
that such information: (i) is or becomes generally known to the public by any means other than a breach of the
obligations of a receiving party hereunder; (ii) was previously known to the receiving party as evidenced by its
written records; (iii) is rightly received by the receiving party from a third party who is not under an obligation of
confidentiality; or (iv) is independently developed by the receiving party without reference to or use of the other
party's Confidential Information and which such independent development can be established using evidence
that would be acceptable to a court of competent jurisdiction.

(e) “Data” means all data that is provided by Customer to Harris and all other content transmitted, posted,
received or created through Customer’s use of the Hosting Services or the Software.

(f) “Documentation” means user guides, operating manuals, education materials, product descriptions and
specifications, technical manuals, supporting materials, and other information relating to the Software or used
in conjunction with the Software, whether distributed in print, magnetic, electronic, or video format, in effect as
of the date the Software are provided to the Customer.

(g) “Fees” means the Annual Hosting Fees and Professional Services Fees.



– Confidential   Page 2 of 14 

(h) “Professional Service(s)” means those professional service(s) listed in Schedule “A” to this Agreement.

(i) “Professional Services Fees” means the professional service(s) fees set out in Schedule “A” of this
Agreement.

(j) “Hosting Services” means the hosting services to be provided by or on behalf of Harris under this Agreement
that includes hosting, monitoring, operating and maintaining the Software on hardware and related equipment at
a site owned or controlled by Harris and the delivery of non-exclusive access via a virtual private connection (VPN)
to the Customer to use the Software granted to the Customer pursuant to Section 2 hereof.  The Hosting Services
shall also include storing all data entered and maintained by Users through use of the Software.

(k) “Software” means the software product(s) including all upgrades and upgrades that Harris licensed to
Customer pursuant to the Software License Agreement and as listed in Schedule “A” of said Software
License Agreement.

(l) “Software License Agreement” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Recitals.

(m) “Support Services” means those support services provided pursuant to Schedule “D” of the Software
License Agreement.

(n) “Third Party Components” means any third party telecommunications, energy/utility transportation, managed
facilities and/or software applications and services that Harris or its service providers has licensed or purchased
and provided access to or otherwise made available to Customer as part of the Hosting Services.

(o) “User” means an employee or agent of Customer that has been authorized by the Customer in writing to access
and use the Software solely for such Customer’s internal use as part of the Hosting Services.

2. Authorization

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including without limitation, payment by Customer of the Annual 
Hosting Fees, Harris hereby grants to Customer a personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable limited right during the Term 
to allow Users to access and use the Hosting Services solely in connection with its use of the Software as permitted 
pursuant to the Software License Agreement. 

3. Fees

In consideration of receiving the Hosting Services and the Professional Services, Customer agrees to pay to Harris the Fees 
as described in this Section 3 and Schedule “A” in accordance with the payment terms set out in Schedule “A”. 

The Annual Hosting Fees, Professional Services Fees, and any other fees set out in this Agreement are exclusive of taxes.  
Customer agrees to pay all foreign, federal, state, provincial, county or local income taxes, value added taxes, use, personal, 
property sales and any other taxes, tariff, duty or similar charges that may be levied by a taxing authority (excluding taxes 
on Harris’ net income). 

If any Fees are not paid when due, then at Harris’ discretion, (a) such Fees may accrue late interest at the rate of 1.5% (18% 
per annum) of the outstanding balance per month, or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is lower, from the date 
such fee was due until the date paid, and/or (b)] Harris may suspend the Service, including all Customer access to the 
Service, pursuant to Section 11(b). 

4. Hosting Services Term

Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
shall continue for a period to be coterminous with the term stated in the Software License Agreement.  The Hosting 
Services term shall be automatically renewed for successive one (1) year periods (each a "Renewal Term") subject to 



– Confidential   Page 3 of 14 

Harris’ then-current price structure unless either party provides written notice to the other party of its intention not to renew 
within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the end of the then current term.  The Initial Term and Renewal Term(s) shall 
collectively be referred to as the “Term”. 

5. Restrictions on Use

In addition to its termination rights under Section 11, Harris my restrict or limit Customer’s access to the Hosting Services if 
Harris reasonably determines that Customer has engaged in or is likely to engage in (whether knowingly or unknowingly) 
any prohibited conduct described herein and such conduct, in Harris’ reasonable opinion poses any risk of any kind or 
nature to Harris or its service providers’ network, business or other customers.  As promptly as practicable after becoming 
aware of Customer’s engagement in any such prohibited conduct, Harris will use reasonable efforts to notify Customer of 
the restriction or limitation to Customer’s access to the Hosting Services and will promptly restore Customer’s access after 
Harris has had reasonable assurance that such conduct has been permanently discontinued.  In addition to and without 
limiting the foregoing, Harris reserves the right to refuse to post or to remove in whole or in part any information or materials 
provided or submitted by or on behalf of Customer in connection with its use of the Hosting Services that Harris determines, 
in its reasonable discretion, are either in violation of this Agreement or pose any risk of any kind or nature to Harris or its 
service provider’s network, business or other customers. 

(a) Except as expressly provided herein, the Customer may not give away, rent, lease or otherwise sell, re-sell,
sublicense, distribute or transfer the license rights granted under this Agreement or otherwise use the Hosting
Services or the Software except as expressly permitted by this Agreement and the Software License Agreement
without the prior written consent of Harris.

(b) The Customer agrees that it will not reverse engineer, decompile, translate or otherwise attempt to derive, or permit or
help others to derive the source code relating to all or any part of the Software or attempt to otherwise convert or alter
the Software into human readable code, except to the extent applicable law expressly prohibits the foregoing restriction.

(c) No third party, other than duly authorized agents or employees of the Customer authorized pursuant to Section 2
hereunder, shall have access to or use of the Software.

(d) The Customer shall not copy, frame or mirror any part or content of the Hosting Services, other than copying or framing
on Customer’s own intranets or otherwise for Customer’s own internal business purposes.

(e) The Customer shall not access the Hosting Services in order to (i) build a competitive product or service; (ii) copy any
features, functionality or graphics of the Software; or (iii) knowingly allow access to any competitor of Harris.

(f) The Customer shall not transmit, upload, post, distribute, store or otherwise publish, through use of the Hosting Services,
any data, material or Information that: (i) contains a software virus, Trojan horse, worm or other harmful or deleterious
computer code, files or programs that may adversely affect any hardware or software, or that intercepts or
misappropriates any data or information; (ii) is threatening, defamatory, libelous, harassing, profane, is an invasion of
privacy, offensive, obscene or harmful; (iii) infringes or otherwise violates any patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret
or other intellectual property or proprietary right of any third party; (iv) violates any law, statute, ordinance or regulation;
or  (v) includes unsolicited bulk e-mails, advertisements or solicitations.

(g) The Customer shall not interfere with or disrupt services or networks connected to the system used to provide the
Hosting Services and shall not attempt to gain unauthorized access to the Hosting Services or such services or
networks connected to the system used to provide the Hosting Services.

(h) The Customer shall not provide the results of using the Hosting Services for the purposes of monitoring its availability,
performance, functionality, benchmarking or competitive analysis to any third party.

6. Hosting Services

(a) Harris shall provide all facilities, equipment, software and services required to deliver the Hosting Services.  Harris shall
have the right to manage all resources used in proving the Hosting Services, as Harris deems appropriate.  The system
resources that are used by Harris to provide the Hosting Services may be used for the applications of other Harris
customers or third parties.



   
– Confidential              Page 4 of 14 

 

(b)  Harris shall host and provide access to the Software to Users.   Such access shall be provided twenty four (24) hours 
per day, seven (7) days per week, subject to scheduled periods of non-availability as described in Schedule “B”.  Harris’ 
liability to Customer, in the unlikely event that said Hosting Services becomes unavailable in violation of Schedule “B”, 
shall be limited to a service credit equal to a pro-rata amount of the corresponding monthly Hosting Fee; said pro-rata 
amount calculated by dividing the period of unavailability by the total possible available hours in the given month.  Any 
request for credit must be made of Harris within 15 days of the Service Interruption. 

 
(c)  Harris reserves the right to have additional User acceptance criteria that may be applied to Users prior to their ability 

to have access to the Software.  Harris shall inform Customer of such criteria but Harris shall be free to implement 
such criteria at any time without prior written warning to the Customer and/or to Users.  Where Users do not accept 
such and/or agree to such criteria, Harris reserves its rights to not grant to such Users access to the Software.  
Harris reserves its rights to restrict access to the Software to Users for any violation of any additional terms and 
conditions to which such Users accept/agree to access the Software. 

 
(e) Harris shall provide installation, configuration, system administration and maintenance of the facilities and equipment 

and software required to operate and ensure access to the Software. Customer, not Harris, shall be responsible for 
creating and maintaining all User account information and for performing all other application level system 
administration functions that are available within the Software. 

 
(f) Harris shall comply with the terms and conditions regarding access and use of Data as set out in Section 13 of this 

Agreement. 
 

(g) Customer acknowledges that in order to provide the Hosting Services Harris may be required to purchase access 
the Third Party Components.  Customer further acknowledges that the availability of such Third Party Components 
is based solely on the best information available to Harris and its service providers as of the Effective Date 
including third party representations and government regulations and is subject to change during the Term with little 
or no advance notice. If any necessary Third Party Components are determined by Harris to be unavailable as a 
result of changes to any third party availability, governmental regulations or other condition or circumstance outside 
of Harris’ control, then (a) Harris shall not be in breach hereof or otherwise liable for any failure or inability to 
provide the Hosting Services as a result of such unavailability of any Third Party Components; and (b) Harris may in 
its sole discretion modify, change or replace the applicable Third Party Components and otherwise attempt to 
mitigate the impact of the such unavailability of Third Party Components, subject to the right to terminate set out in 
Section 11(e).  
 

7.  Customer Responsibilities 
 
(a) Co-operation by Customer -- The Customer acknowledges that the success and timeliness of the implementation 

process shall require the active participation and collaboration of the Customer's and its staff and agrees to act reasonably 
and co-operate fully with the Harris to achieve the Completion of Services related to any Professional Services supplied 
by Harris. To enable Harris to provide effective Support Services, the Customer will establish auto remote access based 
on remote access procedures compatible with Harris’ practices. 
 

(b) Project Manager -- The Customer shall appoint a project manager who shall work closely with Harris to facilitate the 
successful completion of the implementation process and who shall be responsible for supervising the staff of the 
Customer and their co-operation with and participation in such process during any Professional Services.  

 
(c) Customer Equipment.  Customer agrees that it shall be responsible, at its sole expense, for providing all Internet access, 

including but not limited to obtaining, installing and maintaining all equipment, hardware, network, Internet or direct 
telecommunications connections and software applications (e.g. web browser) at its facilities required for Users to access 
and use the Software.  Harris shall not be responsible for the operation of any Internet, network or other communication 
services.  The Customer further acknowledges that the operation of the Software requires the Customer's and Users’ 
hardware to be of sufficient quality, condition and repair, and the Customer agrees to and/or to ensure that Users’ maintain 
their applicable hardware in the appropriate quality, condition and repair at its sole cost and expense.  These requirements 
may also be necessary in order to facilitate the achievement of Completion of Services related to any Professional 
Services supplied by Harris. 

 
(d) Passwords.  Customer agrees to comply with all Harris security policies and procedures as provided to it and amended 



   
– Confidential              Page 5 of 14 

 

from time to time.  Customer and its Users shall be responsible for keeping any and passwords and user ID’s assigned 
to it its Users secret and confidential. Customer agrees that it is and shall remain solely and completely liable for any 
communications or other uses that are made using Customer’s or its Users’ passwords and user ID’s, as well as any 
obligation that may result from such use.  Customer agrees to notify Harris in writing to change Customer or User’s 
password(s) for any reason, including without limitation if it believes that a password has been stolen or might otherwise 
be misused.  Customer agrees to notify Harris immediately of any unauthorized use of any password or user ID or any 
other breach of security suspected by Customer. 

 
(e) Users.  The Customer is responsible for: (i) the actions of Users using the Hosting Services in accordance with this 

Agreement; (ii) ensuring that Users agree to any further terms and conditions as may be provided by Harris from time to 
time for Users; and (iii) informing Harris of any information about Users’ actions that may affected either the Software or 
third party data contained in the Software, or Harris’s ability to provide Hosting Services as contemplated by this 
Agreement. 

 
(f) Compliance with Laws.  Customer represents and warrants to Harris that it and its Users will at all times be in 

compliance with all applicable local, state, provincial, federal and international laws including but not limited to those laws 
regarding restrictions on exports, defamation, libel, harm to reputation, invasion of privacy, misuse or failure to protect 
personal information, violation of secrecy, confidentiality, unfair competition and other situations which could generate 
liability. 

 
(g) Data Security.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that use of or connection to the Internet is inherently insecure and 

provides opportunity for unauthorized access by a third party to Customer’s and its Users’ (as well as Harris’) computer 
systems, networks and any and all information stored therein.  Customer is solely responsible for ensuring that (i) 
Customer’s computer systems are secure and protected from unwanted interference (such as “hackers” and viruses), (ii) 
all transmissions are screened for viruses or other harmful code prior to transmission to Harris’ servers; and (iii) Data is 
encrypted.   

 
HARRIS DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE PRIVACY, SECURITY, AUTHENTICITY, AND NON-CORRUPTION OF ANY 
INFORMATION TRANSMITTED OR STORED IN ANY SYSTEM CONNECTED TO THE INTERNET.  WE SHALL NOT 
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES WHATSOEVER OF CUSTOMER’S OR ITS USERS’ 
CONNECTION TO OR USE OF THE INTERNET, AND HARRIS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY USE BY 
CUSTOMER OR ANY USER OF CUSTOMER’S INTERNET CONNECTION IN VIOLATION OF ANY LAW, RULE OR 
REGULATION.  
 
 

8.  Warranty and Warranty Disclaimer 
 
a) Limited Warranty.  Harris warrants to Customer that the Hosting Services shall be performed at a level and shall 

substantially conform to the specifications, as stated in Harris’ manuals and other documentation provided to 
Customer, provided that all use of the Hosting Services is for the purposes and in the environment for which they were 
designed and in accordance with such specifications.  Customer’s sole remedy in the event the Hosting Services do 
not conform to the foregoing limited warranty is for Harris to use commercially reasonable efforts to correct such non-
conformance and the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11(a). 

 
b)    Warranty Disclaimer.  TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED 

WARRANTY SET OUT IN SETION 13(A), THE HOSTING SERVICES, THE SOFTWARE, THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AND ANY OTHER PRODUCTS OR SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE 
PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER “AS IS” AND THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS OR 
CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WRITTEN OR ORAL, ARISING BY STATUTE, OPERATION OF LAW, 
COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE, REGARDING THEM OR ANY OTHER PRODUCT, 
SERVICE OR MATERIAL PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION HEREWITH. 

 
HARRIS, ITS LICENSORS AND SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS 
REGARDING THE SOFTWARE, THE HOSTING SERVICES, THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND ANY OTHER 
PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND MATERIALS PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY, 
DURABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT. 



– Confidential   Page 6 of 14 

HARRIS DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE HOSTING SERVICES OR THE SOFTWARE SHALL 
OPERATE ERROR FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, SHALL MEET ANY OR ALL OF CUSTOMER’S PARTICULAR 
REQUIREMENTS, THAT ALL ERRORS OR DEFECTS IN THE HOSTING SERVICES OR SOFTWARE CAN BE 
FOUND OR CORRECTED. 

WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, HARRIS DOES NOT MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES 
WHATSOEVER WITH REGARD TO PRODUCTS OR SERVICES FROM THIRD PARTIES (INCLUDING WITHOUT 
LIMITATION THE THIRD PARTY COMPONENTS, THE HARDWARE, THE OPERATION OF THE INTERNET, 
NETWORK OR OTHER COMMUNICATION SERVICES) AND ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY WITH 
RESPECT TO THE FOREGOING OR THE APPROPRIATENESS OF YOUR DATA MANAGEMENT SYSTEM OR 
THE ACCURACY OF DATA CONTAINED IN SUCH SYSTEM. 

NO AGREEMENTS VARYING OR EXTENDING ANY EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT 
SHALL BE BINDING ON EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN WRITING AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED SIGNING 
OFFICER OF HARRIS. 

9. Limitations on Liability

TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, CUSTOMER AGREES THAT THE ENTIRE 
LIABILITY OF HARRIS AND CUSTOMER’S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO THE HOSTING SERVICES, 
THE SOFTWARE, THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND ANY OTHER PRODUCTS, MATERIALS OR SERVICES 
SUPPLIED BY HARRIS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT FOR DAMAGES FOR ANY CAUSE AND 
REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT, INCLUDING FUNDAMENTAL 
BREACH OR NEGLIGENCE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO ACTUAL DIRECT DAMAGES AND SHALL NOT EXCEED IN 
THE AGGREGATE THE ANNUAL HOSTING FEES PAID IN THE THEN-CURRENT YEAR BY CUSTOMER TO 
HARRIS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.  

CUSTOMER FURTHER AGREES THAT IN NO EVENT SHALL HARRIS BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 
ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT, INCLUDING FUNDAMENTAL BREACH OR NEGLIGENCE, FOR 
ANY INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION FOR LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, FAILURE TO REALIZE ANTICIPATED 
SAVINGS, LOST OR DAMAGED DATA, LOSS OF GOODWILL, BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES OR REPUTATION, OR 
ECONOMIC LOSS, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN ADVISED 
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH POTENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGES, OR SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES ARE 
FORESEEABLE.   

10. Change Order Process

With respect to any proposed changes to the Professional Services defined by this Agreement, the parties will cooperate 
in good faith to execute Change Orders in respect thereof, and will not unreasonably withhold approval of such proposed 
changes.  If either party causes or requests a change in the allocation of the resources of Harris applied to a task, changes 
in completion schedules for individual tasks or for overall implementation, and changes in staffing that require Harris to 
provide additional work hours, Harris may propose a change to cover the additional work effort required of it. Approval of 
any such proposed changes will not be unreasonably withheld (it being acknowledged that any such material changes may 
require modifications to the consideration paid, and timelines governing the Professional Services), and any disputes 
regarding changes shall be handled initially by discussions between the parties which will be convened in good faith by 
the parties to resolve any such matters in dispute. 

11. Cancellations and Termination

This Agreement may be terminated as follows:

a. If either party is in material breach of any of its obligations or any provision under this Agreement, the other party
must notify the breaching party in writing of such default (a “Default Notice”).  Upon receipt of a Default Notice, the
breaching party must correct the default at no additional cost to the other party within ninety (90) days, or issue a



– Confidential   Page 7 of 14 

written notice of its own disputing the alleged default within thirty (30) days, of the date of receipt of a Default Notice. 
If the breaching party fails to correct the default within such ninety (90) day period, and did not issue a notice 
disputing the alleged default within such thirty (30) day period, the other party may terminate this Agreement upon 
written notice to the other party to that effect 

b. If Customer has failed to pay any amounts when due under this Agreement, Harris shall have the right to (i) suspend
performance of the Hosting Services (including Customer access to the Hosting Services) until all amounts are paid
in full; and/or (ii) terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to Customer to that effect.

c. Harris may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to Customer if Customer has
breached its obligations of confidentiality or any intellectual property right or proprietary right of Harris.

d. Either party may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to the other party if the other
party: (i) becomes insolvent; (ii) becomes the subject of any proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or
liquidation law, whether domestic or foreign, and whether voluntary or involuntary, which is not resolved favorably
to the subject party within ninety (90) days of commencement thereof; or (iii) becomes subject to property seizure
under court order, court injunction or other court order which has a material adverse effect on its ability to perform
hereunder.

e. If any such modification, change or replacement of the original Third Party Components pursuant to Section 6(g)
includes a material price increase with respect to the Hosting Services enabled by such Third Party Components
or impairs Customer’s ability to utilize such Hosting Services in substantially the same manner as they were
utilized prior to the modification, change or replacement, Customer may cancel the Hosting Services and
terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Harris within twenty (20) days after Customer’s receipt of
notification of such material price increase or discovery of such impairment.

f. This Agreement shall automatically terminate in the event that the Software License Agreement is terminated or
expires.

12. Effects of Termination

In the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement:

(a) All rights granted to Customer in this Agreement shall immediately terminate and Harris will immediately cease to
perform the Hosting Services.

(b) Customer will pay all amounts due under this Agreement up to and through the date of termination and all costs
reasonably incurred in collecting the amounts due to Harris (including court costs, attorney fees, and repossession
charges to the extent not prohibited by law).

(c) Customer shall return to Harris or at Harris’ option purge or destroy all copies of any Confidential Information of
Harris in its possession or under its control (except as required under any statute or legislation related to retention
requirements), and provide a duly authorized certificate of an officer of Customer confirming same within thirty (30)
days.

(d) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, termination of this Agreement shall not affect any right of action of
either party arising from anything which was done or not done, as the case may be, prior to the termination taking
effect.

(e) Any cancellation and/or termination of this Agreement prior to the end of the Initial Term shall result in the following:
an acceleration of all Annual Hosting Fees due for each year of the Initial Term not already invoiced and/or paid,
which amount will be due immediately.  This section will not affect Harris’s right to collect any further invoiced
amounts for other Professional Service Fees.

(f) Conditional upon Customer’s payment of all Fees that are due to Harris, Harris will furnish the Customer with a copy
of the Data in a format to be mutually agreed upon between the parties in writing (typically a .csv file). The anticipated
services to provide a copy of the Data are one to two weeks and will be billed at Harris’s then current daily rate. Upon



– Confidential   Page 8 of 14 

receipt of notice from Customer confirming receipt of the Data, Harris shall destroy all copies of the Data and delete 
all Data on the database and an Officer of Harris shall certify the destruction and deletion to the Customer.  Subject 
to any legal requirement that Harris must retain a copy of the Data, Harris shall not delete the Data for 90 days from 
the date of termination except: (i) where Harris has provided the Data to Customer pursuant to this Subsection; or 
(ii) where it has received written instructions from Customer to delete the Data.  Following 90 days from the date of
termination if Customer has not communicated with Harris regarding the Data, Harris shall have the right to delete
all Data at any time as either required by law or as determined by Harris in its sole discretion.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Harris shall be permitted to delete all Data without providing notification to Customer and Harris shall not
be required to adhere to the time frames detailed above where Harris is required by law to delete such Data.

(g) In the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement other than termination by Harris for cause, Customer’s
license rights granted under the Software License Agreement shall continue pursuant to the terms of said Agreement
and upon request Harris shall deliver to Customer a copy of the Software for installation by Customer at Customer’s
site in accordance with the terms of the Software License Agreement.  If Customer wishes to obtain installation,
implementation, conversion or other services from Harris in connection with the migration of the Software and/or
Data to Customer’s equipment, the parties shall enter into a separate written agreement.

13. Ownership

(a) By Harris.  Customer acknowledges that at all times Harris, its service providers or licensors are and shall remain the
owner of all hardware, servers, equipment, networks or other software Harris uses in the performance of the Hosting
Services.  Harris, its service providers and licensors are and shall at all times remain the owner of all copyright,
trademarks, trade secrets, patents and any other intellectual property rights in and to the Hosting Services and Software
and related documentation, materials, logos, names and other support materials provided pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement.  Customer shall acquire no right whatsoever to all or any part of the Software except the limited right to
access and use the Software in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the Software License Agreement and
Harris and its licensors reserve all rights not expressly granted to Customer.  Customer must fully reproduce any copyright
or other notice marked on any part of the documentation or other materials on all authorized copies and must not alter or
remove any such copyright or other notice. Customer hereby grants to Harris a royalty-free, worldwide, irrevocable,
perpetual license to use and incorporate in to the Hosting Services any suggestions, ideas, enhancement requests,
recommendations or other feedback provided by Customer relating to the operation of the Hosting Services or the
Software.

(b) Customer Data.  As between Harris and Customer, all Data will remain the sole and exclusive property of Customer.
Customer is solely responsible for ensuring the accuracy, quality, integrity, reliability, appropriateness and right to view
and use the Data.  Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, Customer grants to Harris a world-wide, non-
exclusive, royalty-free license to access the Data for the purpose of performing the Hosting Services. Access to the Data
shall only be by Harris’s employees and/or subcontractors whose job function requires access. Except as specified in
this Agreement, Harris may not access the Data for any other purpose without the express written consent of Customer.
Access to Data by any outside party shall only be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or where required by
law.

Customer grants to Harris a world-wide, non-exclusive, royalty-free license to aggregate or compile Data with the
customer data of other customers using the Hosting Services so long as such aggregation or compilation omits any data
that would enable the identification of Customer, its clients or any individual, company or organization (“Aggregated
Data”).  Harris shall have a worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free license to use, modify, distribute and create derivative
works based on such Aggregated Data, including all reports, statistics or analyses created or derived therefrom.
Additionally, Customer grants Harris the right to access Data to provide feedback to Customer concerning its use of the
Hosting Services.

In the event that Harris will have access to “education records” for the Customer’s students as defined under the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Harris acknowledges that for the purposes of this Agreement it will be
designated as a “school official” with “legitimate educational interests” in the Client’s Education records, as those terms
have been defined under FERPA and its implementing regulations, and Harris agrees to abide by the FERPA limitations
and requirements imposed on school officials.  Harris will use the Education records only for the purpose of fulfilling its
duties under this Agreement, and will not share such Data with or disclose it to any third party except as provided for in
this Agreement, where required by law, or authorized in writing by Customer.



   
– Confidential              Page 9 of 14 

 

 
(c) Data and Privacy Policy of Customer 

 
The Customer represents and warrants to Harris that:   

 
a. Data that is either provided to or acquired by Harris is owned exclusively by Customer and that the Customer 

has full right and title to provide the Data to Harris; 

b. Data that is either provided to or acquired by Harris is subject to a privacy policy in effect as of the Effective Date 
and Customer’s customers have provided to Customer their written consent for its collection, use and storage by 
Harris and its third-party service providers in accordance with this Agreement and in any jurisdiction in North 
America; 

c. Customer complies with all applicable privacy legislation as of the Effective Date in the performance of its 
obligations hereunder in respect of any Data collected, used, transferred, created or disclosed pursuant to this 
Agreement; and 

d. Customer will not provide Harris with data of any kind for which Harris either has no need or does not have the 
right to collect, use and store under the terms of this Agreement. 

14. Confidential Information 
 
The parties agree to keep confidential any and all Confidential Information with respect to the other party which it has 
received or may in the future receive in connection with this Agreement and shall only disclose such Confidential 
Information of the other party (i) to its agents, employees or representatives who have a need to know such information, 
for the purpose of performance under this Agreement and exercising the rights granted under this Agreement, and who 
have entered into a non-disclosure agreement at least as protective of the other party’s Confidential Information as this 
Agreement, or (ii) to the extent required by applicable law or during the course of or in connection with any litigation, 
arbitration or other proceeding based upon or in connection with the subject matter of this Agreement, provided that the 
receiving party shall give the disclosing party reasonable notice prior to such disclosure and shall comply with any 
applicable protective order or equivalent.  The parties each agree to hold the other party’s Confidential Information in 
confidence and to take all reasonable steps, which shall be no less than those steps it takes to protect its own confidential 
and proprietary information, to protect the Confidential Information of the other party. 

 
In addition to any other restrictions on Harris’ use of the Data, the confidentiality obligations above apply except to the 
extent that both parties agree that the Data may be subject to privacy laws providing for the owners of the Data to review 
such Data or to challenge the collection and storage of the Data.    Customer shall indemnify and reimburse Harris in 
relation to all reasonable fees and other disbursements paid by Harris to comply with such requests, whether by an 
individual or a government body, or to challenge such requests at either Harris’ or Customer’s request.  Customer 
represents and warrants to Harris that as of the Effective Date no individual, government body or third party has requested 
a review of the Data or challenged the collection and storage of the Data to be stored in the Software. 

15.  Indemnity  

Customer is solely responsible for its Data, its use, and its Users’ use, of the Hosting Services in any way, and all legal 
liability arising out of or relating thereto.  Customer shall defend, indemnify and hold Harris and its third party service 
providers, if applicable, and each of their respective officers, directors, employees and agents (the “Indemnities”) harmless 
from and against any and all losses, costs, damages and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) that the 
Indemnities may suffer in connection with any demands, claims, actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or in connection 
with (i) the use of the Hosting Services including but not limited to any Third Party Components by Customer or its Users; 
(ii) any breach by Customer or its Users of this Agreement; or (iii) Customer’s Data, including but not limited to any third 
party claims that the inclusion, use, reference, incorporation of or linking to any third party materials or the Customer’s 
Data violates such third party’s copyright and/or other intellectual property, privacy or other rights, or that such use is illegal. 

16. General 
 



– Confidential   Page 10 of 14 

(a) Governing Law; Venue: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the federal laws of the United States applicable therein.  This Agreement
expressly excludes that body of law applicable to choice of law, the Uniform Commercial Code and the United Nations
Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods and any legislation implementing such Convention, if
otherwise applicable.    Customer and Harris hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the right
to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim filed by any party, whether in contract, tort or otherwise, relating
directly or indirectly to this Agreement or any acts or omissions of Harris in connection therewith or contemplated
thereby.

(b) Mediation: Except where this Agreement explicitly states that this Section does not apply, the parties agree to submit
any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the relationship created by this
Agreement to non-binding mediation before bringing a claim, controversy or dispute in a court or before any other
tribunal.  The mediation is to be conducted by either an individual mediator or a mediator appointed by mediation
services mutually agreeable to the parties.  Such mediator shall be knowledgeable in software system agreements.
The mediation shall take place at a time and location which is also mutually agreeable; provided; however, in no event
shall the mediation occur later than ninety (90) days after either party notified the other of its desire to have a dispute
be placed before a mediator.  The costs and expenses of mediation, including compensation and expenses of the
mediator (and except for the attorneys’ fees incurred by either party), is to be shared by the parties equally.  If the
parties are unable to resolve the claim, controversy or dispute within ninety (90) days after the date either party
provides the other notice of mediation, then either party may bring and initiate a legal proceeding to resolve the claim,
controversy or dispute unless the time period is extended by a written agreement of the parties.  Nothing in this
Section shall inhibit a party’s right to seek injunctive relief at any time.

(c) Notice

Any notice required or permitted to be given to any party to this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be delivered
either personally, mailed by prepaid registered post or sent by facsimile to the appropriate address or facsimile number
set out below.  Any such notice shall be conclusively deemed to have been given and received on the day on which it
is delivered or transmitted (or on the next succeeding business day if delivered or received by facsimile after 5:00 p.m.
local time on the date of delivery or receipt, or if delivered or received by facsimile on a day other than a business day),
if personally delivered or sent by facsimile or, if mailed, on the third business day following the date of mailing, and
addressed, in the case of the Consultant, to:

in the case of Harris, to: 
Harris ERP 
1224 Fern Ridge Pkwy., Suite 100 
St. Louis, MO 63141 
Attention: Executive Vice President 

With copy to 
N. Harris Computer Corporation
1 Antares Drive, Suite 400
Ottawa, ON K2E 8C4
Attention: Commercial General Counsel

and in the case of the Customer, to: 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas 
216 Walnut Street 
Texarkana, AR 71854 
Attention: TyRhonda Henderson 
Telephone: 870-779-4954 

Each party may change its particulars respecting notice, by issuing notice to the other party in the manner described in 
this Section 16(c). 



– Confidential   Page 11 of 14 

(d) Currency:  Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts referred in this Agreement are in lawful money of United
States.

(e) Entire Agreement: This Agreement together with the Schedules attached to this Agreement constitute the entire
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous agreements, representations, negotiations, understandings, arrangements, and communications
between the parties, both written and oral, relating to the subject matter hereof.     No terms and conditions in any
Customer orders, or in any other documentation employed by or on behalf of Customer in connection with this
Agreement, regardless of the date of such documentation, will affect the terms of this Agreement, even if such
document is accepted by the receiving party, with such provisions being deemed deleted. This Agreement may only
be modified by a written amendment signed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.

(f) Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent,
or subsequent breach of the same or any other provisions hereof, and no waiver shall be effective unless made in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.

(g) Assignment:  Customer may not assign any of its rights or duties under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of Harris, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

(h) Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable law, then such provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary in
order to render such provision valid and enforceable.  If such provision may not be so saved, it shall be severed and
the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

(i) Allocation of Risk: Customer acknowledges and agrees that the warranty disclaimer and limitation of liability
contained in this Agreement are fundamental elements of the basis of the bargain between Harris and Customer and
set forth an allocation of risk reflected in the fees and payments due hereunder.

(j) Relationship:  The parties are and shall at all times remain independent contractors in the performance of this
Agreement and nothing herein shall be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership or agency relationship between
the parties.  Neither party will have the power to bind the other party or to contract in the name of or create any liability
against the other party in any way for any purpose.  Neither party will be responsible for the acts or defaults of the
other party or of those for whom the other party is law responsible.

(k) Equitable Relief:  Customer acknowledges and agrees that it would be difficult to compute the monetary loss to
Harris arising from a breach or threatened breach of this Agreement by Customer and that, accordingly, Harris will be
entitled to specific performance, injunctive or other equitable relief in addition to or instead of monetary damages in
the event of a breach or threatened breach of this Agreement by Customer.

(l) Force Majeure:  No default, delay or failure to perform on the part of Harris shall be considered a breach of this
Agreement where such default, delay or failure is due to a force majeure or to circumstances beyond its control.  Such
circumstances will include, without limitation, strikes, riots, civil disturbances, actions or inactions concerning
government authorities, epidemics, war, terrorist acts, embargoes, severe weather, fire, earthquakes, acts of God or
the public enemy or default of a common carrier, unavailability of Third Party Components or other disasters or events.

(m) Survival:  Sections 1 (Definitions), 3 (Fees), 5 (Restrictions on Use), 7(f) (Compliance with Laws), 7(g) (Security),  8
(Warranty Disclaimer), 9 (Limitation of Liability), 12 (Effects of Termination), 13 (Ownership), 14 (Confidential
Information), 15 (Indemnity), 16 (General) and any other provision of this Agreement which is required to ensure that
the parties fully exercise their rights and their obligations hereunder shall survive any termination or expiration of this
Agreement unless and until waived expressly in writing by the party to whom they are the benefit.

(n) Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (whether by facsimile signature, PDF via email, or



– Confidential   Page 12 of 14 

otherwise), each of which when so executed shall constitute an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Harris and the Customer have duly executed this Agreement to be effective on the Effective 
Date first written above. 

HARRIS SYSTEMS USA, Inc. City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Signature Signature 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Name  Name 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Title  Title 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Date  Date 



– Confidential   Page 13 of 14 

Schedule “A” 
Fees and Payment Schedule * 

Purchased Hosting Services:  

Hosting services shall be provided for the following Harris products listed in the Software License Agreement. 

Financial Suite: General Ledger (excluding Grants & Projects), Accounts Payable, Budgeting and Purchasing. 
Central Cash Receipts  
Human Resources/Payroll Suite: Human Resources, Payroll Federal, State and Local Reporting.  
Integrations:  My Benefits Channel Employee Portal – Pay Stubs only 

Annual Hosting Fees: Subject to annual increases 

Hosting Fees Amount 

 

$ 

Total Fees Due upon completion of set-up: $ 

* All pricing is exclusive of applicable sales, use or similar taxes.  Customer is responsible for any such taxes that may apply; if Customer is tax exempt,
evidence of such tax exemption must be provided. Lapsed payments may lead to termination of Hosting Services in accordance with this Agreement.

PAYMENT TERMS: 

The Hosting Fees listed in the table above shall be invoiced upon Completion of Services, with evidence of said Completion 
of Services being by the issuance of an Invoice by Harris to Customer for the listed Hosting Fees.   

The Annual Hosting Fees shall be invoiced on each anniversary date thereafter.  Annual Hosting Fees are invoiced in advance 
of an upcoming annual term and shall be due and payable thirty (30) days from date of invoice.   

RESET OF TERM TO MATCH FISCAL YEAR: 

Customer may request that Harris match the annual invoicing of the Annual Hosting Fees with Customer’s fiscal year.  In order 
for Customer to elect to match annual invoicing with their fiscal year, Customer must make said request to Harris in writing 
and during the Initial Term of this Agreement.  If such election is made Harris shall, a) issue a prorated invoice for any Hosting 
Fees due for the portion of the year remaining in Customer’s current fiscal year, b) extend the then current term to expire at 
the end of the Customer’s subsequent fiscal year, c) issue an annual invoice thereafter on the annual anniversary date of 
Customer’s fiscal year for any Hosting Fees due, and d) reset future annual terms to expire at the end of Customer’s fiscal 
year.  Annual Hosting Fees are invoiced in advance of an upcoming annual term.  Hosting fees shall be due and payable thirty 
(30) days from date of invoice.



   
– Confidential              Page 14 of 14 

 

Schedule “B” 
Service Availability 

 
Availability and Uptime Objectives: 

 
Availability of the Hosting Services is defined as when the Software and Customer's data are operational and 
accessible via a public internet connection.  Harris shall strive to make the Hosting Services available 100% of the 
time.  However, the Hosting Services may be unavailable during certain downtimes.  Harris shall not be responsible 
for any failure to make the Hosting Services available under the following circumstances: 

 
i. Routine scheduled downtime:  Periods of time for the purpose of conducting routine system maintenance.  

In such event, Harris shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Customer with a minimum of 
three (3) business days prior to any period of scheduled downtime, and shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to limit any such routine system maintenance to weekends between the hours of midnight and 6 AM 
ET. 

 
ii. Emergencies:  Harris reserves the right to suspend the Hosting Services and Customer’s access to the 

Software in the case of an emergency or other non-routine maintenance event wherein it is deemed 
appropriate by Harris in its sole discretion, without prior notice to Customer, to address a critical system 
issue.  In such event, Harris will use commercially reasonable efforts to notify Customer of such suspended 
access as soon as possible and to restore access the system as soon as practically feasible. 
 

iii. Customer’s network infrastructure:  Customer’s network infrastructure (equipment, software or other 
technology) is failing or causing the Hosted Service to be unavailable.  This includes Customer’s connection 
to the Internet or an Internet failure beyond the control of Harris. 
 

iv. A breach of the Agreement by Customer, its employees, subcontractors or agents (“Customer 
Representatives”). 
 

v. An error or the negligence or intentional acts or omissions of Customer Representatives or Users. 
 

vi. Unforeseen capacity increases based on changes in Customer’s business processes or methods. 
 

vii. Any other force majeure event, as set out in Section 16(l) of the Agreement. 
 

 
 

 



Confidential  Page 2 

Master Software License, Services, and Support Agreement 

This Master Software License, Services, and Support Agreement (the “Agreement”), is entered into 
on April 17, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 216 Walnut Street, 
Texarkana, AR 71854 ("Customer") and Harris Systems USA, Inc. ("Harris"). 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained here and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions

The following terms shall have the meaning set out below; all other capitalized terms not otherwise defined 
in this Section shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement: 

1. “Annual Support Services Fees” means the annual Support Services fees set out in
Schedule “A” to this Agreement.

2. “License Fees” means the license fees set out in Schedule “A” to this Agreement.

3. “Change Order” means any written documentation between the Customer and Harris
evidencing their agreement to change particular aspects of this Agreement.

4. “Confidential Information” means, with respect to a party hereto, all information or material which:
is (A) marked "Confidential," "Restricted," or "Proprietary Information" or other similar marking, (B)
known by the parties to be considered confidential, proprietary, or is confidential under federal or state
law or (C) which should be known or understood to be confidential or proprietary by an individual
exercising reasonable commercial judgment in the circumstances. Confidential Information of Harris
shall include, without limitation, the Software, the Documentation, and any information with respect to
the Software or Services that Harris may provide to Customer from time to time, including without
limitation, all information disclosed by Harris relating to the security of its facilities, computer systems
and products.  Confidential Information does not include information to the extent that such information:
(i) is or becomes generally known to the public by any means other than a breach of the obligations of
a receiving party hereunder; (ii) was previously known to the receiving party as evidenced by its written
records; (iii) is rightly received by the receiving party from a third party who is not under an obligation
of confidentiality; or (iv) is independently developed by the receiving party without reference to or use
of the other party's Confidential Information and which such independent development can be
established using evidence that would be acceptable to a court of competent jurisdiction.  Confidential
Information of Harris shall include, without limitation, the Services, the Software, Documentation, and
any information with respect to the Services that Harris may provide to Customer from time to time,
including without limitation, the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all information disclosed
by Harris relating to the security of its facilities, computer systems and products.

5. “Data” means all data that is provided by Customer to Harris and all other content transmitted,
posted, received or created through Customer’s use of the Services or the Software.

6. “Documentation” means user guides, operating manuals, education materials, product
descriptions and specifications, technical manuals, supporting materials, and other information
relating to the Software or used in conjunction with the Software, whether distributed in print,
magnetic, electronic, or video format, in effect as of the date the Software are provided to the



 

Confidential  Page 3  

 

Customer. 
 

7. “Fees” means the License Fees, Annual Support Services Fees, Professional Services Fees, and 
other fees as may be further described and listed in Schedule “A” of this Agreement which may 
include fees that Harris collects on behalf of third-party vendors of Third-Party Components which 
are licensed and distributed directly by such third-party vendor. 

 
8. “Professional Service(s)” means those implementation, training, consulting, data conversion and 

professional service(s) provided by the Harris Professional Services team as further described in a 
Statement of Work of Schedule 

 
9. “Professional Services Fees” means the Professional Service(s) fees set out in the Schedule “A”, 

or any subsequent Statement of Work that is to be paid by Customer to Harris for the Professional 
Services. 

 
10. “Services” each means the web-based service(s) to be provided by or on behalf of Harris under this 

Agreement that includes hosting, monitoring, operating and maintaining the Software at a site owned 
or controlled by Harris or its service providers and the delivery of exclusive access via the Internet to 
Customer to use the Software granted to Customer pursuant to Section 2 hereof.  The Services shall 
also include storing all data entered and maintained by Users through use of the Services. 

 
11. “Statement of Work” or “SOW” means the Statement of Work, including any additional terms 

and conditions, that is included in Schedule “E” and any other Statement of Work executed by 
the parties.  Such additional Statements of Work shall be incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference, and in the event of any conflict between the terms of any Statement of Work and the 
Agreement, the Agreement shall prevail. 

 
12. “Software” means the software product(s) that are owned by Harris, delivered on a annual 

license basis and listed in Schedule “A” and includes Updates that have been provided to 
Customer.   Third Party Components are not included in the definition of Software. 

 
13. “Support Services” means those maintenance and support services to be provided by the 

Harris Support team as further described in Schedule “C” to this Agreement. 
 

14. “Third Party Components” means any third party telecommunications, energy/utility transportation, 
managed facilities and/or software applications and services that Harris or its service providers has 
licensed or purchased and provided access to or otherwise made available to Customer as part of the 
Services as well as any third party software that is required to be obtained by Customer directly from 
the applicable third party vendor in accordance with Section 7(h).  

 
15. “Updates” means any minor modifications, enhancements, or improvements to the Software as well 

as bug fixes and error corrections that Harris makes generally available to its customers. 
 

16. “User” means an employee or agent of Customer that has been authorized by the Customer in writing 
to access and use the Services. 

 
  



Confidential  Page 4 

2. Authorization

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including without limitation, payment by Customer 
of the Professional Services Fees required for set-up or implementation, License Fees and the Annual 
Support Services Fees, Harris hereby grants to Customer a personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable 
limited license during the Term to (a) allow Users to access and use the Software and the Services listed 
in Schedule “A” on an annual basis and in accordance with the Documentation solely for Customer’s 
internal business purposes and (b) to use, copy and modify the Documentation solely for the purpose of 
creating and using internal training materials relating to the Services. 

3. Fees

In consideration of receiving the Software and the Services, and any Support Services and Professional 
Services, Customer agrees to pay to Harris the Fees and all applicable travel and lodging expenses as 
described in Schedule “A” to this Agreement in accordance with the payment terms as defined in Schedule 
“A”. Harris may, at its sole discretion, increase in annual Support Service Fees payable by Customer. 

The Fees are exclusive of taxes.  Customer agrees to pay all foreign, federal, state, provincial, county 
or local income taxes, value added taxes, use, personal, property sales and any other taxes, tariff, duty 
or similar charges that may be levied by a taxing authority (excluding taxes on Harris’s net income). 

If any Fees are not paid when due, then at Harris’s discretion, (a) such Fees may accrue late interest at 
the rate of 1.5% (18% per annum) of the outstanding balance per month, or the maximum rate permitted 
by law, whichever is lower, from the date such fee was due until the date paid, and/or (b) Harris may 
suspend the Software and  Service, including all Customer access to the Service, pursuant to Section 
16(b). 

4. Term

Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of five (5) years (the "Initial Term").  After the Initial Term, 
the Agreement shall be automatically renewed for successive one (1) year periods (each a "Renewal 
Term") subject to Harris’s then-current price structure unless either party provides written notice to the 
other party of its intention not to renew within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the end of the then 
current term.  The Initial Term and Renewal Term(s) shall collectively be referred to as the “Term”. 

5. Restrictions on Use

o Except as expressly provided herein, Customer may not give away, rent, lease or otherwise
sell, re-sell, sublicense, distribute or transfer the license rights granted under this Agreement
or otherwise use the Services except as expressly permitted by this Agreement without the
prior written consent of Harris.

o Customer agrees that it will not reverse engineer, decompile, translate or otherwise attempt
to derive, or permit or help others to derive the source code relating to all or any part of the
Software or Services, or attempt to otherwise convert or alter the Software or Services into
human readable code, except to the extent applicable law expressly prohibits the foregoing
restriction.

o Customer may duplicate Documentation, at no additional charge, for Customer's internal
use so long as all required proprietary markings are retained on all duplicated copies.

o No third party, other than duly authorized agents or employees of Customer authorized



 

Confidential  Page 5  

 

pursuant to Section 2 hereunder, shall have access to or use of the Services.  
 
o Customer shall not copy, frame or mirror any part or content of the Services, other than 

copying or framing on Customer’s own intranets or otherwise for Customer’s own internal 
business purposes. 

 
o Customer shall not access the Services in order to (i) build a competitive product or service; 

(ii) copy any features, functionality or graphics of the Software; or (iii) knowingly allow access 
to any competitor of Harris. 

 
o The Customer shall not transmit, upload, post, distribute, store or otherwise publish, through 

use of the Services,  any data, material or Information that: (i) contains a software virus, Trojan 
horse, worm or other harmful or deleterious computer code, files or programs that may 
adversely affect any hardware or software, or that intercepts or misappropriates any data or 
information; (ii) is threatening, defamatory, libelous, harassing, profane, is an invasion of 
privacy, offensive, obscene or harmful; (iii) infringes or otherwise violates any patent, copyright, 
trademark, trade secret or other intellectual property or proprietary right of any third party; (iv) 
violates any law, statute, ordinance or regulation; or (v) includes unsolicited bulk e-mails, 
advertisements or solicitations. 

 
o Customer shall not interfere with or disrupt services or networks connected to the system used 

to provide the Services and shall not attempt to gain unauthorized access to the Services or 
such services or networks connected to the system used to provide the Services. 

 
o Customer shall not provide the results of using the Services for the purposes of monitoring its 

availability, performance, functionality, benchmarking or competitive analysis to any third party. 
 
o In addition to its termination rights under Section 16, Harris may restrict or limit Customer’s 

access to the Services if Harris reasonably determines that Customer has engaged in or is 
likely to engage in (whether knowingly or unknowingly) any prohibited conduct described 
herein and such conduct, in Harris’s reasonable opinion poses any risk of any kind or nature 
to Harris or its service providers’ network, business or other customers.  As promptly as 
practicable after becoming aware of Customer’s engagement in any such prohibited conduct, 
Harris will use reasonable efforts to notify Customer of the restriction or limitation to 
Customer’s access to the Services and will promptly restore Customer’s access after Harris 
has had reasonable assurance that such conduct has been permanently discontinued.  In 
addition to and without limiting the foregoing, Harris reserves the right to refuse to post or to 
remove in whole or in part any information or materials provided or submitted by or on behalf 
of Customer in connection with its use of the Services that Harris determines, in its reasonable 
discretion, are either in violation of this Agreement or pose any risk of any kind or nature to 
Harris or its service provider’s network, business or other customers. 

  
6. Services Availability  

 
4. Harris shall provide all facilities, equipment, and software required to make the Services 

available. 
 

5. Harris shall use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Services available to Users 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week; subject to the terms further defined 
in Schedule “B”. 
 

6. Harris reserves the right to have additional User acceptance criteria that may be applied to 
Users prior to their ability to have access to the Services.  Harris shall inform Customer of such 
criteria, but Harris shall be free to implement such criteria at any time without prior written 



 

Confidential  Page 6  

 

warning to the Customer and/or to Users.  Where Users do not accept such and/or agree to 
such criteria, Harris reserves its rights to not grant to such Users access to the Services.  Harris 
reserves its rights to restrict access to the Services to Users for any violation of any additional 
terms and conditions to which such Users accept/agree to access the Services. 
 

7. Harris shall provide installation, configuration, system administration and maintenance of the 
facilities and equipment and software required to operate and ensure availability of the Services. 
Customer, not Harris, shall be responsible for creating and maintaining all User account 
information and for performing all other application-level system administration functions that 
are available within the Services after the go-live date specified in Schedule “E”. 
 

8. Harris shall comply with the terms and conditions regarding access and use of Data as set out 
in Section 13 of this Agreement. 
 

9. Customer acknowledges that in order to provide the Services Harris may be required to 
purchase access to Third Party Components. Customer further acknowledges that the 
availability of such Third-Party Components is based solely on the best information available 
to Harris and its service providers as of the Effective Date including third party representations 
and government regulations and is subject to change during the Term with little or no advance 
notice. If any necessary Third Party Components are determined by Harris to be unavailable 
as a result of changes to any third party availability, governmental regulations or other condition 
or circumstance outside of Harris’ control, then (a) Harris shall not be in breach hereof or 
otherwise liable for any failure or inability to provide the Services as a result of such 
unavailability of any Third Party Components; and (b) Harris may in its sole discretion modify, 
change or replace the applicable Third Party Components and otherwise attempt to mitigate 
the impact of the such unavailability of Third Party Components, subject to the right to  revise 
the Subscription Fees. 

 
7.  Customer Responsibilities 

 
5. Cooperation by Customer.  Customer acknowledges that the success and timeliness of the 

implementation process shall require the active participation and collaboration of Customer and 
its staff and agrees to act reasonably and co-operate fully with Harris to achieve the Completion 
of Services related to any Professional Services provided by Harris. To enable Harris to provide 
effective Support Services, the Customer will establish auto remote access based on remote 
access procedures compatible with Harris’s practices. 
 

6. Project Manager.  Customer shall appoint a project manager who shall work closely with Harris 
to facilitate the successful completion of the implementation process and who shall be 
responsible for supervising Customer staff and ensure their co-operation with and participation 
in such process during any Professional Services engagement.  
 

7. Customer Equipment.  Customer agrees that it shall be responsible, at its sole expense, for 
providing all Internet access, including but not limited to obtaining, installing and maintaining 
all equipment, hardware, network, Internet or direct telecommunications connections and 
software applications (e.g. web browser) at Customer’s facilities required for Users to access 
and use the Software and Services.  Harris shall not be responsible for the operation of any 
Internet, network or other communication services.  Customer further acknowledges that 
access to and the operation of the Services requires Customer’s and Users’ hardware to be of 
sufficient quality, condition and repair, and Customer agrees to and/or to ensure that Users’ 
maintain their applicable hardware in the appropriate quality, condition and repair at its sole 
cost and expense.  These requirements may also be necessary in order to facilitate the 
achievement of Completion of Services related to any Professional Services supplied by Harris. 
 



 

Confidential  Page 7  

 

8. Passwords.  Customer agrees to comply with all Harris security policies and procedures as 
provided to it and amended from time to time.  Customer and its Users shall be responsible for 
keeping any and all passwords and user ID’s assigned to it its Users secret and confidential. 
Customer agrees that it is and shall remain solely and completely liable for any communications 
or other uses that are made using Customer’s or its Users’ passwords and user ID’s, as well 
as any obligation that may result from such use.  Customer agrees to notify Harris in writing if 
it believes that a password has been stolen or might otherwise be misused.  Customer agrees 
to notify Harris immediately of any unauthorized use of any password or user ID or any other 
breach of security suspected by Customer. 
 

9. Users.  The Customer is responsible for: (i) the actions of Users using the Services in 
accordance with this Agreement; (ii) ensuring that Users agree to any further terms and 
conditions as may be provided by Harris from time to time for Users; and (iii) informing Harris 
of any information about Users’ actions that may affect either the Services or third party data 
contained in or used by the Services, or Harris’s ability to provide the Services as contemplated 
by this Agreement. 
 

10. Compliance with Laws.  Customer represents and warrants to Harris that it and its Users will 
at all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state, provincial, federal and international 
laws including but not limited to those laws regarding restrictions on exports, defamation, libel, 
harm to reputation, invasion of privacy, misuse or failure to protect personal information, 
violation of secrecy, confidentiality, unfair competition and other situations which could 
generate liability. 
 

11. Data Security.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that use of or connection to the Internet 
is inherently insecure and provides opportunity for unauthorized access by a third party to 
Customer’s and its Users’ (as well as Harris’s) computer systems, networks and any and all 
information stored therein.  Customer is solely responsible for ensuring that (i) Customer’s 
computer systems are secure and protected from unwanted interference (such as “hackers” 
and viruses), (ii) all transmissions are screened for viruses or other harmful code prior to 
transmission to Harris’s servers; and (iii) Data is encrypted.  Some content may be subject to 
governmental regulations or may require security measures beyond those specified by Harris 
for an offering.  Customer will not input or provide such content unless Harris has first agreed 
in writing to implement additional required security measures.  
 
HARRIS DOES NOT GUARANTEE THE PRIVACY, SECURITY, AUTHENTICITY, AND NON-
CORRUPTION OF ANY INFORMATION TRANSMITTED OR STORED IN ANY SYSTEM 
CONNECTED TO THE INTERNET.  WE SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY 
ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES WHATSOEVER OF CUSTOMER’S OR ITS USERS’ 
CONNECTION TO OR USE OF THE INTERNET, AND HARRIS SHALL NOT BE 
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY USE BY CUSTOMER OR ANY USER OF CUSTOMER’S 
INTERNET CONNECTION IN VIOLATION OF ANY LAW, RULE OR REGULATION.  
 

12. Required Third Party Software.  Customer agrees that it shall license the third-party software 
set out in Schedule E to this Agreement directly from the vendor of such software.  Although 
Harris may collect the license fees from Customer on behalf of such third party software vendor 
as part of the Subscription Fees, Customer acknowledges that such third party software shall 
be delivered by the third party vendor and subject to all of the terms and conditions of the 
applicable license agreement to be entered into between Customer and such third party 
vendor, and Harris shall have no responsibility or liability whatsoever for such third party 
software.   

 
8.  Professional Services & Support Services   

  



Confidential  Page 8 

1. Professional Services.  Professional Services shall be provided to Customer in
accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and
Schedule “E” or any subsequent Statement of Work. Such subsequent Statements of
Work shall be incorporated into this Agreement by Reference.

2. Support Services.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement including payment
of the Subscription Fees, Harris shall provide the Support Services in accordance with
Schedule “C”, subject to the terms therein, and of this Agreement.  Where Third Party
Software is required pursuant to Schedule “D” to this Agreement, Customer must also
purchase all applicable support and maintenance services if required. Customer agrees that
Harris’s support and maintenance services for the Third-Party Software are unique and
cannot be adequately provided by another third party because of the integration between
the Software and Third-Party Software.

9. Warranty and Warranty Disclaimer

o Limited Warranty.  Harris warrants to Customer that the Services and Software shall be
performed at a level and shall substantially conform to the specifications, as stated in Harris’s
documentation, provided that all use of the Software and Services is for the purposes and in
the environment for which they were designed and in accordance with such specifications.
Customer’s sole remedy in the event the Services do not conform to the foregoing limited
warranty is for Harris to use commercially reasonable efforts to correct such non-
conformance and the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11.

o Warranty Disclaimer.  TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, EXCEPT
FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY SET OUT IN SECTION 9(A), THE SERVICES,
THE SOFTWARE, THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES , SUPPORT SERVICES, AND ANY
OTHER PRODUCTS OR SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE
PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER “AS IS” AND THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES,
REPRESENTATIONS OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WRITTEN OR
ORAL, ARISING BY STATUTE, OPERATION OF LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE
OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE, REGARDING THEM OR ANY OTHER PRODUCT, SERVICE
OR MATERIAL PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION HEREWITH.

HARRIS, ITS LICENSORS AND SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR
CONDITIONS REGARDING THE SOFTWARE, THE SERVICES, THE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AND ANY OTHER PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND MATERIALS PROVIDED
HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY, DURABILITY,
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT.

HARRIS DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE SERVICES  OR
SOFTWARE, OR THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OR SUPPORT SERVICES SHALL
OPERATE ERROR FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, SHALL MEET ANY OR ALL OF
CUSTOMER’S PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS, THAT THE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES
CAN BE USED OR COMBINED WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR SERVICES NOT SUPPLIED
BY OR ON BEHALF OF HARRIS, CANNOT BE SUBJECT TO USER ERROR, THAT IT
CAN BE USED IN ANOTHER ENVIROMENT FOR WHICH IT WAS NOT INTENDED, OR
THAT ALL ERRORS OR DEFECTS IN THE SERVICES OR SOFTWARE CAN BE FOUND
OR CORRECTED.

HARRIS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY BREACH OF THE LIMITED WARRANTY IF
SUCH BREACH IS A RESULT OF THE CUSTOMER’S FAILURE TO INSTALL ANY
UPDATE THAT HARRIS HAS INFORMED CUSTOMERS IS REQURIED OR NECESSARY



 

Confidential  Page 9  

 

FOR SECURITY PURPOSES, OR IS OTHERWISE REQUIRED FOR LEGISLATIVE 
COMPLIANCE, REGULATORY COMPLIANCE, OR AS HARRIS MAY DETERMINE IS 
IMPORTANT, HARRIS DOES NOT RESPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE 
SOFTWARE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY REGULATORY OR OTHER 
REQUIREMENTS IF SUCH UPDATE IS NOT IMPLEMENTED. 
 
WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, HARRIS DOES NOT MAKE ANY 
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER WITH REGARD TO 
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES FROM THIRD PARTIES (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION 
THE THIRD PARTY COMPONENTS, THE HARDWARE, THE OPERATION OF THE 
INTERNET, NETWORK OR OTHER COMMUNICATION SERVICES) AND ASSUMES NO 
RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY WITH RESPECT TO THE FOREGOING OR THE 
APPROPRIATENESS OF YOUR DATA MANAGEMENT SYSTEM OR THE ACCURACY 
OF DATA CONTAINED IN SUCH SYSTEM. 
 
NO AGREEMENTS VARYING OR EXTENDING ANY EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET 
FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE BINDING ON EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN 
WRITING AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED SIGNING OFFICER OF HARRIS. 
 

10.  Limitations on Liability 
 
TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, CUSTOMER AGREES THAT 
THE ENTIRE LIABILITY OF HARRIS, ITS OFFICERS SHAREHOLDERS, DIRECTORS AND 
EMPLOYEES,  AND CUSTOMER’S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES, THE 
SOFTWARE, THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND ANY OTHER PRODUCTS, MATERIALS OR 
SERVICES SUPPLIED BY HARRIS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT FOR DAMAGES 
FOR ANY CAUSE AND REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR 
IN TORT, INCLUDING FUNDAMENTAL BREACH OR NEGLIGENCE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO 
ACTUAL DIRECT DAMAGES AND SHALL NOT EXCEED IN THE AGGREGATE LICENSE AND 
SUPPORT FEES PAID BY CUSTOMER TO HARRIS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR CURRENT 
YEAR OF THE TERM.. 
 
CUSTOMER FURTHER AGREES THAT IN NO EVENT SHALL HARRIS BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS 
OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT, INCLUDING FUNDAMENTAL 
BREACH OR NEGLIGENCE, FOR ANY INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, 
SPECIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION FOR 
LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, FAILURE TO REALIZE ANTICIPATED SAVINGS, LOST OR 
DAMAGED DATA, LOSS OF GOODWILL, BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES OR REPUTATION, OR 
ECONOMIC LOSS, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF IT 
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH POTENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGES, OR SUCH 
LOSSES OR DAMAGES ARE FORESEEABLE.   
 
11.  Termination 
This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

• If either party is in material breach of any of its obligations or any provision under this 
Agreement, the other party must notify the breaching party in writing of such default (a 
“Default Notice”).  Upon receipt of a Default Notice, the breaching party must correct the 
default at no additional cost to the other party within ninety (90) days or issue a written notice 
of its own disputing the alleged default within thirty (30) days, of the date of receipt of a 
Default Notice.  If the breaching party fails to correct the default within such ninety (90) day 
period, and did not issue a notice disputing the alleged default within such thirty (30) day 
period, the other party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party 
to that effect 



 

Confidential  Page 10  

 

 
• If Customer has failed to pay any amounts when due under this Agreement, Harris shall 

have the right to (i) suspend performance of the Services (including Customer access to the 
Services) until all amounts are paid in full; and/or (ii) terminate this Agreement effective 
immediately upon written notice to Customer to that effect.  

 
• Harris may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to Customer 

if Customer has breached its obligations of confidentiality or any intellectual property right or 
proprietary right of Harris. 

 
• Either party may terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon written notice to the 

other party if the other party: (i) becomes insolvent; (ii) becomes the subject of any 
proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation law, whether domestic or foreign, 
and whether voluntary or involuntary, which is not resolved favorably to the subject party 
within ninety (90) days of commencement thereof; or (iii) becomes subject to property 
seizure under court order, court injunction or other court order which has a material adverse 
effect on its ability to perform hereunder. 

 
• If any such modification, change or replacement of the original Third Party Components 

pursuant to Section 6(f) impairs Customer’s ability to utilize such Services in substantially 
the same manner as they were utilized prior to the modification, change or replacement, 
Customer may terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Harris within twenty 
(20) days after Customer’s discovery of such impairment. 

 

 12. Effects of Termination 

In the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement: 

3. All rights granted to Customer in this Agreement shall immediately terminate and Harris will 
immediately cease to perform or provide the Services and provide access to the Software.  
 

4. Customer shall return to Harris or at Harris’s option purge or destroy all copies of any 
Confidential Information of Harris in its possession or under its control (except as required 
under any statute or legislation related to retention requirements) and provide a duly 
authorized certificate of an officer of Customer confirming same within thirty (30) days.  
 

5. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, termination of this Agreement shall not 
affect any right of action of either party arising from anything which was done or not done, 
as the case may be, prior to the termination taking effect. 
 

6. Customer will pay all amounts due under this Agreement up to and through the date of 
termination and all costs reasonably incurred in collecting the amounts due to Harris 
(including court costs, attorney fees, and repossession charges to the extent not prohibited 
by law). 
 

7. Conditional upon Customer’s payment of all Fees that are due to Harris, Harris will furnish 
the Customer with a copy of the Data in a format to be mutually agreed upon between the 
parties in writing (typically a .csv file). The anticipated time to provide a copy of the Data is 
five business days, subject to the size and complexity of the Customer’s database and will 
be billed at Harris’s then current daily rate.  Customer shall provide Harris written notice of 
its receipt of the data.  Upon receipt of notice from Customer confirming receipt of the Data, 
Harris shall destroy all copies of the Data and delete all Data on the database and an Officer 
of Harris shall certify the destruction and deletion to the Customer.  Subject to any legal 



 

Confidential  Page 11  

 

requirement that Harris must retain a copy of the Data, Harris shall not delete the Data for 
90 days from the date of termination except: (i) where Harris has provided the Data to 
Customer pursuant to this Subsection; or (ii) where it has received written instructions from 
Customer to delete the Data.  Following 90 days from the date of termination if Customer 
has not communicated with Harris regarding the Data, Harris shall have the right to delete 
all Data at any time as either required by law or as determined by Harris in its sole discretion.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Harris shall be permitted to delete all Data without providing 
notification to Customer and Harris shall not be required to adhere to the time frames detailed 
above where Harris is required by law to delete such Data. 

 
13. Ownership 

  
o By Harris.  Harris its service providers and licensors are and shall at all times remain the owner 

of all copyright, trademarks, trade secrets, patents and any other intellectual property rights in 
and to the Services, Software, , and related documentation, materials, logos, names and other 
support materials provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  Customer shall acquire no 
right whatsoever to all or any part of the Services, Software or underlying software except the 
limited right to access and use the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and 
Harris and its licensors reserve all rights not expressly granted to Customer.  Customer must 
fully reproduce any copyright or other notice marked on any part of the documentation or other 
materials on all authorized copies and must not alter or remove any such copyright or other 
notice. Customer hereby grants to Harris a royalty-free, worldwide, irrevocable, perpetual license 
to use and incorporate into the Services, Software, and underlying software any suggestions, 
ideas, enhancement requests, recommendations or other feedback provided by Customer 
relating to the operation of the Services or Software.  

 
o Customer Data.  As between Harris and Customer, all Data will remain the sole and exclusive 

property of Customer. Customer is solely responsible for ensuring the accuracy, quality, integrity, 
reliability, appropriateness and right to view and use the Data.  Subject to the terms and 
conditions of the Agreement, Customer grants to Harris a world-wide, non-exclusive, royalty-free 
license to access the Data for the purpose of performing the Services. Access to the Data shall 
only be by Harris’s employees and/or subcontractors whose job function requires access. Except 
as specified in this Agreement, Harris may not access the Data for any other purpose without 
the express written consent of Customer.  Access to Data by any outside party shall only be in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement or where required by law. 

 
Customer grants to Harris a world-wide, non-exclusive, royalty-free license to aggregate or 
compile Data with the customer data of other customers using the Services so long as such 
aggregation or compilation omits any data that would enable the identification of Customer, 
its clients or any individual, company or organization (“Aggregated Data”).  Harris shall have 
a worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free license to use, modify, distribute and create derivative 
works based on such Aggregated Data, including all reports, statistics or analyses created 
or derived therefrom.  Additionally, Customer grants Harris the right to access Data to 
provide feedback to Customer concerning its use of the Services. 
 
Customer authorizes Harris to disclose the fact that Customer is a customer of Harris and uses 
the Services.   

o Data and Privacy Policy of Customer 
 
The Customer represents and warrants to Harris that:   
 

• Data that is either provided to or acquired by Harris from Customer is owned 
exclusively by Customer and that the Customer has full right and title to provide the 
Data to Harris; 



Confidential  Page 12 

• Data that is either provided to or acquired by Harris is subject to a privacy policy in
effect as of the Effective Date and Customer’s customers have provided to Customer
their written consent for its collection, use and storage by Harris and its third-party
service providers in accordance with this Agreement and in any jurisdiction in North
America;

• Customer complies with all applicable privacy legislation as of the Effective Date in
the performance of its obligations hereunder in respect of any Data collected, used,
transferred, created or disclosed pursuant to this Agreement; and

• Customer will not provide Harris with data of any kind for which Harris either has no
need or does not have the right to collect, use and store under the terms of this
Agreement.

14. Confidential Information

The parties agree to keep confidential any and all Confidential Information with respect to the other 
party which it has received or may in the future receive in connection with this Agreement and shall only 
disclose such Confidential Information of the other party (i) to its agents, employees or representatives 
who have a need to know such information, for the purpose of performance under this Agreement and 
exercising the rights granted under this Agreement, and who have entered into a non-disclosure 
agreement at least as protective of the other party’s Confidential Information as this Agreement, or (ii) 
to the extent required by applicable law or during the course of or in connection with any litigation, 
arbitration or other proceeding based upon or in connection with the subject matter of this Agreement, 
provided that the receiving party shall give the disclosing party reasonable notice prior to such disclosure 
and shall comply with any applicable protective order or equivalent.  The parties each agree to hold the 
other party’s Confidential Information in confidence and to take all reasonable steps, which shall be no 
less than those steps it takes to protect its own confidential and proprietary information, to protect the 
Confidential Information of the other party. 

In addition to any other restrictions on Harris’s use of the Data, the confidentiality obligations above 
apply except to the extent that both parties agree that the Data may be subject to privacy laws providing 
for the owners of the Data to review such Data or to challenge the collection and storage of the Data. 
Customer shall indemnify and reimburse Harris in relation to all reasonable fees and other 
disbursements paid by Harris to comply with such requests, whether by an individual or a government 
body, or to challenge such requests at either Harris’s or Customer’s request.  Customer represents and 
warrants to Harris that as of the Effective Date no individual, government body or third party has 
requested a review of the Data or challenged the collection and storage of the Data to be stored in the 
Software. 

15. Indemnity

Customer is solely responsible for its Data, its use, and its Users’ use, of the Services in any way, and 
all legal liability arising out of or relating thereto.  Customer shall defend, indemnify and hold Harris and 
its third party service providers, if applicable, and each of their respective officers, directors, employees 
and agents (the “Indemnities”) harmless from and against any and all losses, costs, damages and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) that the Indemnities may suffer in connection with any 
demands, claims, actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or in connection with (i) the use of the 
Software and Services including but not limited to any Third Party Components by Customer or its Users; 
(ii) any breach by Customer or its Users of this Agreement; or (iii) Customer’s Data, including but not
limited to any third party claims that the inclusion, use, reference, incorporation of or linking to any third
party materials or the Customer’s Data violates such third party’s copyright and/or other intellectual
property, privacy or other rights, or that such use is illegal.



Confidential  Page 13 

16. General
• Governing Law; Venue: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of Delaware and subject to the jurisdiction of the state and federal
courts therein.  This Agreement expressly excludes that body of law applicable to choice of
law, the Uniform Commercial Code and the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the
International Sale of Goods and any legislation implementing such Convention, if otherwise
applicable.    Customer and Harris hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law, the right to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim filed by any party,
whether in contract, tort or otherwise, relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement or any
acts or omissions of Harris in connection therewith or contemplated thereby.

• Notice

Any notice required or permitted to be given to any party to this Agreement shall be given in
writing and shall be delivered either personally, mailed by prepaid registered post or by
nationally recognized overnight courier to the following addresses:”

 in the case of Harris, to: 
Harris ERP 
1224 Fern Ridge Pkwy., Suite 100 
St. Louis, MO 63141 
Attention: Executive Vice President 

With copy to 
N. Harris Computer Corporation
1 Antares Drive, Suite 400
Ottawa, ON K2E 8C4
Attention: Commercial General Counsel

and in the case of the Customer, to: 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas 
216 Walnut Street 
Texarkana, AR 71854 
Attention: TyRhonda Henderson 
Telephone: 870-779-4954 

Any such notice shall be conclusively deemed to have been given and received on the day 
on which it is delivered as evidenced by written or electronic receipt. Each party may change 
its respective notice address from time to time, by providing written notice to the other party 
in the manner described in this Section 16(c). 

• Currency:  Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts referred in this Agreement are in
lawful money of the United States of America.

• Use of Name.  Customer agrees to the following promotional activities in relation to the
purchase of Harris’s solutions, products and services: (i) Customer permits Harris to issue a
mutually agreed upon press release announcing Customer’s purchase of Harris’s products
and services; and (ii) Customer grants Harris the right to reasonably include the Customer’s
name and logo in published lists referencing the users of the products and services of Harris.



 

Confidential  Page 14  

 

Customer may unilaterally withdraw their consent to the above promotional activities at any 
time by providing written notice to Harris of said revocation. 

• Entire Agreement: This Agreement together with the Schedules attached to this Agreement 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof 
and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations, negotiations, 
understandings, arrangements, and communications between the parties, both written and 
oral, relating to the subject matter hereof.     No terms and conditions in any Customer orders, 
or in any other documentation employed by or on behalf of Customer in connection with this 
Agreement, regardless of the date of such documentation, will affect the terms of this 
Agreement, even if such document is accepted by the receiving party, with such provisions 
being deemed deleted. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment 
signed by an authorized representative of each of the parties. The Statement of Work in 
Schedule “E” may be amended by a subsequent, duly executed, Change Order.   

• Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall constitute a waiver 
of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent breach of the same or any other provisions hereof, 
and no waiver shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by an authorized 
representative of the waiving party. 

• Assignment:  Customer may not assign any of its rights or duties under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of Harris, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. 
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties to this 
Agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

• Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable under any applicable law, then such provision shall 
be deemed modified to the extent necessary in order to render such provision valid and 
enforceable.  If such provision may not be so saved, it shall be severed and the remainder 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  

• Allocation of Risk: Customer acknowledges and agrees that the warranty disclaimer and 
limitation of liability contained in this Agreement are fundamental elements of the basis of 
the bargain between Harris and Customer and set forth an allocation of risk reflected in the 
fees and payments due hereunder. 

• Relationship:  The parties are and shall at all times remain independent contractors in the 
performance of this Agreement and nothing herein shall be deemed to create a joint venture, 
partnership or agency relationship between the parties.  Neither party will have the power to 
bind the other party or to contract in the name of or create any liability against the other party 
in any way for any purpose.  Neither party will be responsible for the acts or defaults of the 
other party or of those for whom the other party is law responsible. 

• Equitable Relief:  Customer acknowledges and agrees that it would be difficult to compute 
the monetary loss to Harris arising from a breach or threatened breach of this Agreement by 
Customer and that, accordingly, Harris will be entitled to specific performance, injunctive or 
other equitable relief in addition to or instead of monetary damages in the event of a breach 
or threatened breach of this Agreement by Customer. 

• Force Majeure:  No default, delay or failure to perform on the part of Harris shall be 
considered a breach of this Agreement where such default, delay or failure is due to a force 
majeure or to circumstances beyond its control.  Such circumstances will include, without 
limitation, strikes, riots, civil disturbances, actions or inactions concerning government 
authorities, epidemics, war, terrorist acts, embargoes, severe weather, fire, earthquakes, 
floods, acts of any governmental body, acts of God or the public enemy or default of a 
common carrier, unavailability of Third Party Components or other disasters or events. 

• Survival:  Sections 1 (Definitions), 3 (Fees), 5 (Restrictions on Use), 7 (Customer 
Responsibilities), 6(g) (Security), 9 (Warranty and Warranty Disclaimer), 10 (Limitations of 



Confidential  Page 15 

Liability), 12 (Effects of Termination), 13 (Ownership), 14 (Confidential Information), 15 
(Indemnity), 16 (General) and any other provision of this Agreement which is required to 
ensure that the parties fully exercise their rights and their obligations hereunder shall survive 
any termination or expiration of this Agreement unless and until waived expressly in writing 
by the party to whom they are the benefit. 

• Authority to Execute Agreement:  By signing below, each party warrants and represents
that the person signing this Agreement has authority to bind that party and that the party's
execution of this Agreement is not in violation of any By-law, Covenants and/or other
restrictions placed upon them by their respective entity.  In addition, Customer further
represents and warrants that they have obtained the necessary permissions and
performed all necessary requirements, and shall perform any subsequent requirements,
that are necessary to enter into and perform under this Agreement as are required under
state law or regulation, and under Customer’s relevant policies, or procedures.

• Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (whether by facsimile
signature, PDF via email, or otherwise), each of which when so executed shall constitute
an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Harris and the Customer have duly executed this Agreement to be effective 
on the Effective Date first written above. 

HARRIS SYSTEMS USA, INC. City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Name  Name 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Title  Title 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Date  Date 



Confidential  Page 16 

Schedule “A” 
Fees and Payment Schedule 

The following Software has been licensed under this Agreement: 

CitySuite One Time License Fees: $ 

 Application Software License Software License Fee
Fee Discount After Discount

Financial Management System            
General Ledger                        - 
Accounts Payable             - 
Budget Preparation            - 
Procurement - 

$          $       -$  

Central Cash Receipts
Central Cash Receipts           - 

$            $         -$  

Human Resource Management System    
Human Resources & Payroll            - 
State Reporting - 

$          $       -$  

Interfaces -CitySuite only portion of the interface/hardware not 
Integration My Benefits Channel Employee Portal for pay stubs   

$            $              $             

TOTAL $     $       

Software License



Confidential  Page 17 

CitySuite One Time Professional Services Fees: $ 

Travel Estimate: $

Travel will be billed as incurred; the above number is ONLY an estimation for budgeting purposes. 

CitySuite Annual Support and Maintenance excluding Hosting: 2023 Estimate $

The 2023 Estimate contemplates the provision of support and maintenance coverage for the Select 
solution, which is presently supported pursuant to an extant maintenance agreement, to both City of 
Texarkana and Texarkana Water Utilities. In addition, the 2023 Estimate will afford support and 
maintenance coverage for the new CitySuite solution during City of Texarkana’s transition thereto. 

 Application Software
Cost

Financial Management System            
General Ledger $       
Accounts Payable $       
Budget Preparation $       
Purchasing/Requisitions Management $       

$       

Central Cash Receipts
Central Cash Receipts $         

$         

Human Resource Management System    
Human Resources & Payroll
State Reporting

$        

Interfaces -CitySuite only portion of the interface/hardware not 
provided
Integration My Benefits Channel Employee Portal for pay stubs

$          

TOTAL $ 

Total

 Professional Services



Confidential  Page 18 

Upon the go-live of CitySuite, full coverage maintenance will become operational. Six months from the 
date of CitySuite's go-live, the Select solution will be placed in inquiry only mode, and the terms of 
CitySuite’s Maintenance and Support Services shall become effective. At such time, City of Texarkana's 
Annual Support and Maintenance estimate shall be reduced to $  Nonetheless, should Texarkana Water 
Utilities remain dependent upon the Select platform, thereby hindering Harris from transitioning the 
Select solution to inquiry only mode, the Annual Support and Maintenance shall remain at $ until such 
time as the Select solution may be set to inquiry only mode without any negative effects on Texarkana 
Water Utilities. 

All Support Services are subject to annual increases as outline in Section “3” of the Master Software 
License, Services, and Support Agreement. 



 

Confidential  Page 19  

 

Schedule “B” 

Service Availability 
 

Availability and Uptime Objectives: 
 
2. Availability of the Services is defined as when the Services are operational and accessible via a 

public internet connection.  The Services shall be unavailable during certain scheduled downtime 
periods for the purpose of conducting maintenance and upgrades to the Services.  

 
3. Uptime is defined as the time that the Services are either available or in scheduled downtime.  Specific 

Service Level Objectives relating to Uptime are as follows: 
 

a. Routine scheduled downtime shall not exceed eight (8) hours per month, averaged over 
twelve (12) months.  Scheduled downtimes shall occur, to the extent practicable, during 
the weekend hours from 10:00 p.m. Friday to 3:00 a.m. Monday Eastern Time. 

 
b. Harris shall notify Customer a minimum of five (5) calendar days prior to any period of 

scheduled downtime. 
 

c. Harris reserves the right to schedule downtime for emergency situations with less than 
five (5) advance calendar days’ notice.  In the case of an emergency or other non-routine 
maintenance event, Harris reserves the right to suspend the Services and Customer’s 
access to the Software for purposes of conducting such maintenance work at any time as 
deemed appropriate by Harris in its sole discretion, without prior notice to Customer, but 
will use best efforts to notify Customer of such suspended access as soon as practically 
feasible. 

 
Harris shall make commercially reasonable efforts to achieve the service level objectives described 
herein. 
 
 
4. Harris will not be responsible for any failure to meet the above Service Level Objectives if the failure 

is caused by: 
 

o Customer’s network infrastructure (equipment, software or other technology), Customer’s 
connection to the Internet or an Internet failure beyond the control of Harris; 
 

o A breach of the Agreement by Customer, its employees, subcontractors or agents 
(“Customer Representatives”); 
 

o An error or the acts or omissions of Customer Representatives or Users; 
 

o Emergency or Scheduled maintenance or other mutually agreed upon downtime; or 
 

o Any other force majeure event, as set out in Section 16(m) of the Agreement. 
 

 



Confidential  Page 20 

Schedule “C” 
Maintenance and Support Services 

Harris reserves the right to make modifications to this Agreement as required; provided, however,  
Harris shall not reduce the scope of Support Services provided hereunder without the prior consent 
of the customer.  

STANDARD SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES  
The following services are included as part of Harris’ software support contract: 

• Toll Free Telephone support
• Sunset Rule Program:  same (business) day call back program
• Software for Life

- Guaranteed Support on Customer’s existing applications for as long as Customer pays the
relevant Maintenance and Support Fees and has paid their Annual Licensing and Services Fees
(some restrictions apply)

- Cost effective upgrade solutions
• Scheduled assistance for installations, upgrades & other special projects (there may be charges

depending on the scope of work)
• Technical troubleshooting, including assessment, diagnosis, documentation, and ultimate resolution

of issues that pertain specifically to the customer’s software (troubleshooting does not extend to any
hardware or operating system components, unless the customer has a hardware support contract)

• E-mail support call logging and notification
• Free / web-based Support Sessions
• Free FTP access for upload/downloads
• Online access 24 hours a day, 7 days a week (“24 x 7”).  Harris’ online portal (the “Hub”) can be used

to log support issues and check for status updates on issues.  Access to published documentation
pertaining to a customer’s particular software line (if available) may be contained in the Knowledge
Base article section within the Hub.  The Hub also enables the customer to assign a specific priority
based on the specific level of urgency for a particular circumstance.  In summary, the Hub benefits
include the ability to:

- Log, view, update and close support tickets
- Update contact information
- Access published documentation
- Access available downloads
- Access Knowledge Base

• Access to new software releases, service packs and updates
- Defect corrections
- New features and planned enhancements
- State and/or Federal mandated changes
- Payroll regulated changes
- Participation in BETA program
- Release notes

• Free monthly training webinars
• Free product web demonstrations (by request, scheduling required)
• Customer Care Program

- Newsletters
- Technical support bulletins
- Advance communications on new products and services
- Regional User Groups
- On-site visits (by request – travel expenses may be billable)



 

Confidential  Page 21  

 

• Design review for potential enhancements or custom modifications   
• Account Manager Services (business reviews, CRF assistance, site visits, meeting coordination)  
• NPS (Net Promoter Score Program):  NPS is a customer loyalty program, measuring feedback and 

driving constant improvement to the customer experience.  
• Access to annual customer conference (registration fees apply) and access to conference 

presentation materials post-conference.  
  
STANDARD COVERAGE  
Harris’ standard hours of support are from 8:30 a.m. EST to 8:00 p.m. EST, Monday to Friday, excluding 
designated statutory holidays.   Support can be made available from 8:00 p.m. EST through to 8:30 a.m. 
EST and is billable on an hourly basis.  Weekend assistance is available and must be scheduled in advance 
and in most cases is billable.  
 
CONNECTION METHODS 
To enable Harris to provide support to Customer in an effective and efficient manner, Harris requires that a 
communication link is established via https://harriserp.screenconnect.com, the Harris ERP Remote Support 
Portal (“Portal”).  Communication via the Portal is secure, via SSL, and is encrypted with AES-256 block 
encryption and RSA, provided by the Microsoft RSA/Schannel Cryptographic Provider.  This 
implementation of these algorithms in the Portal have been designated as FIPS compliant for Windows 
servers/machines. 
  
Harris ERP requires all clients to utilize the Portal for remote connectivity to servers and workstations.  
Customer understands that a failure to utilize the Portal may result in delays in support and less timely 
issue-resolution.  Customer further agrees that if the Customer fails to utilize Portal, Harris shall not be held 
to, or be held liable for, any response time, escalation obligations, or penalties listed in this SLA, and that 
Harris may, at its sole discretion, increase in Annual Support Service Fees payable by Customer, due to 
Harris’ additional obligations regarding the management and utilization of other connection methods. 
 
RESPONSE TIMES  
Response times will vary and are dependent on the priority of the call.  Harris will do it’s best to ensure that 
incoming calls are dealt with in the order that they are received, however calls will be escalated based on 
the urgency of the issue reported.  Harris’ response time guidelines are as follows:  
Priority 1:  1 - 4 hours  
Priority 2:  1 - 8 hours  
Priority 3:  1 - 24 hours  
 
CALL PRIORITIES  
In an effort to assign Harris’ resources to incoming calls as effectively as possible, Harris has  
 identified three types of call priorities, 1, 2 & 3.  A Priority 1 call is deemed by Harris’ support staff to be an 
Urgent or High Priority call, Priority 2 is classified as a Medium Priority and Priority 3 is deemed to be a Low 
Priority.  The criteria used to establish guidelines for these calls are as follows:  
 
Priority 1 – High  

• System Down (Software Application, Hardware, Operating System, Database)  
• Inability to process payroll checks  
• Inability to process accounts payable checks  
• Inability to process bills  
• Program errors without workarounds  
• Incorrect calculation errors impacting a majority of records  
• Aborted postings or error messages preventing data integration and update  
• Performance issues of severe nature impacting critical processes  
• Hand-held interface issues preventing billing  



 

Confidential  Page 22  

 

  
Priority 2 - Medium  

• System errors that have workarounds  
• Calculation errors impacting a minority of records  
• Reports calculation issues  
• Printer related issues (related to interfaces with Harris’ software and not the printer itself)  
• Security issues  
• Hand-held issues not preventing billing  
• Performance issues not impacting critical processes  
• Usability issues  
• Workstation connectivity issues (Workstation specific)  

  
Priority 3 - Low  

• Report formatting issues  
• Training questions, how to, or implementing new processes  
• Aesthetic issues  
• Issues with workarounds for large majority of accounts  
• Recommendations for enhancements on system changes  
• Questions on documentation  

   
CALL PROCESS  
All support issues or questions reported to Harris are tracked via a support ticket.  Harris’ Support Analysts 
cannot provide assistance unless a support ticket is logged.  The current process for logging tickets is 
outlined below.  
A support ticket must be placed through one of the following methods:  

• Online (Hub): https://harriserp.na2.teamsupport.com   
• Email: support@harriserp.com   
• Phone: 1-866-450-6696  

  
Customer ticket information must contain the following:   

• Customer/Company Name  
• Contact Person  
• Software Product and/or Version  
• Module and/or Menu Selection  
• Nature of the question or issue  
• Detailed Description of the question or issue  
• Serial Number / Patron Number / Account Number / Serving Date, etc. (where applicable)  

  
The more information provided by the Customer, the faster assistance can be provided.  Specific 
details, such as the employee #, account #, G/L #, are very useful.  Attaching supporting 
material, such as screenshots and report output, are also helpful in identifying and/or resolving the 
issue  
  
Harris’ support system or one of Harris’ support analysts will provide Customer with a call id to track the 
issue and Customer’s call will be logged into Harris’ support tracking database.  
Customer’s call will be stored in a queue and the first available support representative will be assigned to 
deal with Customer’s issue.  
 
Customer will be contacted and advised as to where the issue stands and the course of action that will be 
taken for resolution, as the support representative investigating the issue.  If Harris requires additional 
information, Customer will be contacted by the assigned support representative to supply the information 
required.  

https://harriserp.na2.teamsupport.com/
mailto:support@harriserp.com


 

Confidential  Page 23  

 

 
All correspondence and actions associated with Customer’s call will be tracked against Customer’s all in 
Harris’ support database.  At any time, if available to you, you may log onto eSupport to see the status of 
Customer’s call.  
 
Once Customer’s call has been resolved, you will receive an automated notification by email that 
Customer’s call has been closed.  This email will contain the entire event history of the call from the time 
the call was created and leading up to the resolution of the call.  You also have the option of viewing both 
Customer’s open and closed calls, if available to you, via Harris’ website.  
 
If Customer’s issue needs to be escalated to a development resource or programmer for resolution, 
Customer’s issue will be logged into Harris’ development tracking database and you will be provided with 
a separate id number to track the progress of the issue.  At this time, Customer’s support call will be closed 
and replaced by the development id number.  The development id number will remain open until Customer’s 
issue has been completely resolved.  Issues escalated to development will be scheduled for resolution and 
may not be resolved immediately depending on the nature and complexity of the issue. 
  
Customer may contact the support department at their convenience for a status update on Customer’s 
development issues or may log onto Harris’ website (if available) to view Customer’s issues on-line.  
 
ESCALATION PROCESS  
Harris’ escalation process is defined below.  This process has been put in to place to ensure that issues 
are dealt with appropriately.  If, at any time, the customer is not satisfied with the resolution of the issue, or 
the response to the ticket, they are encouraged to escalate with Harris’ Support Services organization as 
follows:  

• Level 1: Contact the support representative working on Customer’s issue  
• Level 2: Contact the Director of Client Services  
• Level 3: Contact the Vice-President of Operations  
• Level 4: Contact the Executive Vice-President  

 
Escalation Process within Harris’ Internal Ticket Tracking System:  

• Customer ticket is logged with Harris Support  
• If a customer ticket is a Priority 1 and has not been responded to within 4 hours, the Harris Support 

Analysts responsible for the ticket are notified via email, and the ticket is escalated internally.  Priority 
2 tickets will be escalated if not responded to within 8 hours, and Priority 3 tickets will be escalated 
if not responded to within 12 hours   

• If a customer’s Priority 1 ticket has not been responded to 4 hours after the designated timeframe, 
Harris’ Support Supervisor(s) are notified, and the call is escalated  

• If a customer’s Priority 1 ticket has not been responded to after 6 hours from the designated 
timeframe, Harris’ Vice-President of Support is notified, and the call is escalated  

• If a customer’s Priority 1 ticket has not been responded to after 7 hours from the designated 
timeframe, Harris’ Executive Management Team is notified, and the call is escalated  

 
HOLIDAY SCHEDULE  
Please note that Harris’ offices will be closed on designated days, as outlined below.  In instances where 
the Statutory Holiday falls on a weekend, Harris offices will be closed on either the preceding Friday or 
following Monday:  

• New Year’s Day  
• President’s Day  
• Memorial Day  
• Independence Day  

1. Labor Day  
2. Columbus Day  



Confidential  Page 24 

3. Thanksgiving Day
4. Day After Thanksgiving
5. Christmas Eve
6. Christmas Day

BILLABLE SUPPORT SERVICES  
The services listed below are examples of services that are out of scope of Customer’s support and 
maintenance agreement and are therefore considered billable services.  
Extended telephone training (greater than 15 minutes)  

1. Forms redesign or creation (includes Bill Prints, Notice Prints and Letters)
2. Setup & changes to hand-held interface or creation of new interface
3. Setup of new services or changes to services (PAP, ACH, etc)
4. File imports/exports - Interfaces to other applications
5. Refreshes, backups, restores, setting up test areas
6. Setup of new printers, printer setup changes
7. Custom modifications (reports, bills, forms, reversal of customizations)
8. Setting up additional companies / agencies / tokens / general ledgers
9. Data conversions / global modification to setup table data
10. Database maintenance, repairs & optimization
11. Extended Hardware & Operating System support
12. Upgrades & support of third-party software
13. Installations / re-installations (workstations, servers)
14. Style sheet changes (exception – one signature change per year, per system will be provided at

no charge)

TEST DATABASES & ENVIRONMENTS 
Harris is able to support customers in the maintenance of independent Test Environments for testing 
purposes.   This allows customers the opportunity to test fixes, modifications, new business processes 
and/or scenarios without risking any potentially unwanted changes to the live environment.  The creation 
of Test Databases & Environments is a billable service, quotations & incremental maintenance rates will be 
provided on request.  

THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE SUPPORT (IF APPLICABLE) 
Unless otherwise superseded by an existing third-party agreement, Harris’ standard coverage and the 
services for third party software support (if applicable), which are included as a part of Customer’s 
Maintenance and Support Services are as follows:  

Standard Hardware and Third-Party Software Support Services 
1. 800 telephone support – first line phone support for troubleshooting (note, more complex issues

will be escalated to the actual vendor of the products)
2. “On-call,” or after-hours support (scheduled assistance for installations, upgrades and other

special projects – there may be charges depending on the scope of work)
3. Remote connection support
4. Technical troubleshooting
5. Limited training questions (15-minute guideline)
6. Assistance with creation of backup scripts / backup recovery
7. Assistance with recovering data resulting from system crashes (charges may apply)
8. Recommendations on specific hardware requirements
9. Support provided for installed database issues (30-minute guideline)
10. ODBC installation and connection to database assistance
11. Updating databases to support new versions of installed applications
12. Assistance with database installation, configuration and updating



Confidential  Page 25 

The items listed below are services for third party software that are out of scope, and are therefore 
considered billable:  

1. On-site installation or upgrade of third-party software
2. Extended telephone training (beyond 15 minutes)
3. Reconfiguration of fileservers
4. Recovering data resulting from client error
5. Upgrading of any non-covered software on Customer’s systems
6. Preventative maintenance monitoring or other services
7. Recommending or assisting with disaster recovery plans
8. Re-establishment of ODBC connection if connection was lost due to actions of customer
9. ODBC connections to other third-party products
10. Creation of custom reports
11. Report writer training, upgrades and installations (other than at time of initial purchase)



 

Confidential  Page 26  

 

 

Schedule “D” 

Third Party Software 
 

Required Third Party Software 
 
No Third-Party Software is required 
 
  



 

Confidential  Page 27  

 

Schedule “E” 

Statement of Work 

Signatures 
Harris Enterprise Resource Planning (hereinafter referred to as "Harris Enterprise Resource 
Planning", “Harris ERP” or "Harris"). All rights reserved. The information contained in this document 
represents Harris ERP’s contractual documentation as of the date of publication and is subject to change 
without notice. No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, 
electronic or mechanical, for any purpose, without the express written permission of Harris ERP. Other 
product and company names mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.  

General Information  

This Statement of Work (“SOW”) is entered into and agreed upon effective as of _____________________ by 
and between Harris Enterprise Resource Planning (hereinafter referred to as "Harris Enterprise Resource 
Planning", "Harris ERP" or "Harris"), and City of Texarkana identified below (“Customer”). This SOW 
expressly incorporates by reference the entirety of that certain Master Purchase, License & Services 
Agreement between Harris ERP and [insert name party that signed the Master Agreement, which may be 
City of Texarkana or Customer’s Parent Company or other related entity] 
dated ____________________________ (the “Agreement”). If City of Texarkana identified below is not a party 
to the Agreement identified above, then City of Texarkana identified below agrees that upon incorporation 
of the Agreement into this SOW all provisions applicable to the “Customer” in the Agreement shall be 
applicable to City of Texarkana identified below. Upon execution by Harris ERP and Customer, this SOW 
shall constitute a binding Agreement. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to them in the Agreement.   

Effective Date:    

Customer Name:  
 

Designated Location:  
 

Customer Contact:  
 

Customer Phone:  

 
Customer 
Email:  

 

 

Special Terms (if applicable)  

Harris ERP deliverables are limited to products and services expressly listed in Schedule A, Fees and 
Payment schedule of the Master Software License, Services, and Support Agreement.     

  

 

  



Confidential  Page 28 

Statement of Work Approval (Customer) 

Print name of 
authorizing person: 

Print title of authorizing 
person:  

 

Signature of 
authorizing person: Date: 

Statement of Work Approval – Harris Enterprise Resource Planning 

Print name of 
authorizing person: 

Print title of 
authorizing person: 

Signature of 
authorizing person: Date: 



Confidential  Page 29 

Objectives 
The Statement of Work is intended to be a planning and control document, not the detailed requirements 
or design of the solution. It outlines City of Texarkana and Harris ERP’s responsibilities, assumptions, and 
timeline estimates for the project. If a service or software is not listed in this document, it is not considered 
part of this project.  

Customer Objectives 
At the end of the project, City of Texarkana will have fully implemented Harris ERP’s Financial and 
HR/Payroll Solution realizing the following benefits: 

• Identify and implement new and/or automated business processes to improve efficiencies – ex.
Email notifications for approvals, avoiding paper

• Increase sharing of data and reporting across the organization by enabling end users to run their
own reports, for the data they have access to

• Web-based secure access for all users
• Ability to access and use system anywhere and in emergency situations

Overall 

• Save time by reducing manual work
• Save resources by going “paperless” where possible
• Accurate and timely payroll processing
• Streamline electronic processing, reducing dual / manual entry



 

Confidential  Page 30  

 

Project Governance & Management 
 
Project Staffing 
 
Customer’s Project Team 

The City of Texarkana agrees to assign the appropriate personnel to the project, including:  

Role Responsibilities 

Executive Sponsor 

 

The Executive Sponsor provides support to the 
project by providing strategic direction, 
communicating key issues about the project and 
the project’s overall importance to the 
organization. The Executive Sponsor will be 
involved in the project as needed to provide 
necessary support, oversight, and guidance, but 
will not participate in day-to-day activities. 

Project Manager 

 

City of Texarkana’s Project Manager will 
coordinate project team members, subject matter 
experts, and the overall implementation schedule. 
The Project Manager will be responsible for 
reporting to the Executive Sponsor and providing 
most the organization’s change management 
communications and coaching. The project 
manager will also be the primary point of contact 
for the project and will coordinate all Harris ERP 
activities with the Harris ERP project manager. 

Project Team Lead – one per Application 

 

The Project Team Lead(s) are tasked with 
carrying out all project tasks described in the 
Statement of Work including planning, business 
process analysis, configuration, documentation, 
testing, training, and all other required tasks. The 
Project Team Leads are responsible for and 
empowered to implement the new system in the 
best interests of the organization consistent with 
the project goals, project vision, and direction 
from the Project Manager and Executive Sponsor. 
They have the authority to approve process 
changes, configuration, etc. for their department 

Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) if applicable SME’s will have the following duties:  
o Support the Project Team Leads and Project 

Manager in all their duties 
o May assist with the assessment of business 

processes and identifying ways the new 
system can be utilized.  

o May assist in the resolution of issues 
impacting their areas of expertise 



 

Confidential  Page 31  

 

Subject Matter Expert (SME) IT/Technical IT/Technical team member will have the following 
duties:  
o Provide network infrastructure and be 

primary contact for Harris Technical 
Operations Team.  

o May provide first level support for network 
security  

 
City of Texarkana proposes the following team members (template only, additional contacts can be added):  
 

Project Role Functional Area Name Title Designated 
Backup 

Executive Sponsor     

Project Manager     

Project Team Lead – 
Financials & Central 
Cash Receipts 

    

Project Team Lead – 
Human Resources 

    

Project Team Lead – 
Payroll  

    

SME - IT/Technical     

SME 1     

SME 2     

 
  



Confidential  Page 32 

Expected Time Commitments 

Harris ERP has provided a high-level summary of the expected time requirements for City of Texarkana’s 
Project Team, by project role:  

Project Role Estimate of Time Needed for Project 

Executive Sponsor 1 hr. per month, for project duration 

Project Manager 20 - 30 hrs. per week 

Project Team Lead 20 - 30 hrs. per week 

IT/Technical Lead 2 - 3 hrs. per week 

Subject Matter Experts (SME) 6 - 10 hrs. per week 

All of the City of Texarkana personnel who will be involved in the project will be sufficiently knowledgeable 
about their business area’s needs and have the authority to represent their business area. Additionally, City 
of Texarkana’s Project Team identified above will be available and responsive in a timely manner, so as not 
to delay the project.  

The time estimates provided may vary due several factors, but generally vary depending on the Stage of 
the project, as well as the nature of the business area and the team member’s role & responsibility within 
it.  



 

Confidential  Page 33  

 

Harris ERP’s Project Team 

Harris ERP agrees to assign the appropriate personnel to the project, including: 

 

Role Responsibilities 

Executive Sponsor o Provide support to Project Managers where necessary 
o Approve and sign off on any material changes to project scope or staffing 

changes. Any material or staffing changes that affect the scope of the 
project will go through the Change Request process and will be approved 
by the county. 

 

Project Manager o Support City of Texarkana Project Manager in monitoring and reporting 
overall implementation progress (duties of both City of Texarkana and 
Harris ERP) 

o Monitor and report progress on Harris ERP’s responsibilities 
o Immediately notify City of Texarkana Project Manager and Harris ERP 

Executive Sponsor of any issue that could delay the project 
o Fulfill all Harris ERP project deliverables outlined in the SOW. 
o Oversee Harris ERP Staff according to the project plan 
o Immediately notify City of Texarkana Project Manager and Harris ERP 

Executive Sponsor of any staffing changes that affect the implementation 
of the project. 

o Facilitate coordination between all Harris ERP departments 
o Monitor the project plan and schedule and make course corrections as 

agreed to by City of Texarkana Project Manager. 
o Serve with City of Texarkana project manager as the point person for all 

project issues. (First escalation point) 
o With City of Texarkana Project Manager report on issue resolution status 
o Present Harris ERP changes to City of Texarkana for review by the 

Executive Sponsors 
 

Application Consultant   o Knowledgeable in the application to advise on best practices and best 
use of the applications  

o Work with City of Texarkana Project Team Lead to design and configure 
the functional components of the system. 

o Participate in Harris ERP software configuration with assistance from City 
of Texarkana’s Team Leads. 

o Test that the Software operates after configuration as per its design 
o Assist with the resolution of issues 
o Train City of Texarkana’s Project Team during and after configuration of 

software 
o Provide training on security and assist with set up 
o Provide training on, and assist with the set-up of the workflows agreed 

upon during the Business Process Review 

 

 

 



 

Confidential  Page 34  

 

 

 

Project Role Functional 
Area/Agency/Dept 

Name Title Designated 
Backup 

Project Manager Project Manager    

Implementation 
Analyst 

HR/Payroll    

Implementation 
Analyst Financials    

 

Communication  
 

Project Meetings 

City of Texarkana Project Manager and Harris ERP Project Manager will coordinate all meetings for all 
Project Team members, unless otherwise agreed to. At a minimum, both project managers will meet bi-
weekly to review project progress. Notes from the meeting will be documented and contain:  

• Summary of all areas discussed  

• Status of key deliverables  

• Project timeline Status  

• Outstanding Issues/Risks and who owns them  

• Action items for both Harris ERP and City of Texarkana 

• Next Project Activities including consulting/training, development, testing, installation  

 

The Executive Sponsors will meet monthly to review the project status with the Project Managers.  

Ad-hoc meetings between the Application Consultant, City of Texarkana’s Project Team Leads and SME’s 
are expected and encouraged to ensure project milestones and deliverables are met. The Project Team 
Leads and Application Consultant may also schedule recurring meetings over the course of the project, 
depending on availabilities and the stage of the project.  

 

Acceptance  

Harris ERP and City of Texarkana will review, approve, and provide written sign-off for all key deliverables 
for each Stage. Harris ERP will submit in writing to City of Texarkana a form or report for each completed 
deliverable. City of Texarkana will either sign the document, or identify in writing any required changes, 
deficiencies, and/or additions necessary based on the SOW within ten (10) business days of receipt of 
document. If Harris ERP does not receive a response within 10 business days, it will be assumed the 
deliverable is accepted as delivered and completed.  

 



 

Confidential  Page 35  

 

Harris ERP will review deliverables that are not approved by City of Texarkana and will create a plan to 
address them. Once addressed, a new document will be submitted. City of Texarkana will then have five (5) 
days to either approve or provide additional comments on any required changes, deficiencies, and/or 
additions necessary. This process will be repeated until City of Texarkana grants approval and signoff on 
the document. It is assumed that City of Texarkana’s Project Team Lead and/or the Project Manager will 
sign-off on acceptance for all key deliverables, unless otherwise agreed to by City of Texarkana and Harris 
ERP.  

 

Where City of Texarkana is notified that configurations or other items related to the project are ready for 
testing, City of Texarkana will have 30 calendar days to perform the required testing and notify Harris ERP 
within the thirty (30) calendar daytime frame of any items that need to be addressed. If Harris ERP does 
not receive any notification from City of Texarkana during the thirty (30) calendar days, then the relevant 
items will be deemed accepted as-is. 

Customer delays with approval and written sign off for any completed deliverables could have an impact 
on progress of project. 

 

Escalations 

 For challenging issues to be remedied in a timely fashion, City of Texarkana and Harris ERP will utilize the 
following escalation procedure.  

All communication regarding the project should be directed to City of Texarkana and Harris ERP’s Project 
Managers to maintain consistent communication between the parties. Scheduled meetings will be 
maintained as noted above. All issues or concerns will be discussed actively and openly between the 
project managers.  

If issues begin to interfere with the progression of the project, City of Texarkana and/or Harris ERP project 
managers should escalate challenges to Harris ERP and Customer management in the sequence below, as 
needed:  

Name Title Phone Number Email 

 Harris Project Manager   

Laura Conlee 
Russell 

Harris Manager, 
Professional Services 314-485-4928 LConleeRussell@harriscomputer.com 

Chandra 
Temples 

Harris Vice President, 
Professional services 716-402-2659 Ctemples@harriscomputer.com 

 

Escalation to City of Texarkana’s management team should be as follows:  

Name Title Phone Number Email 

    

    



 

Confidential  Page 36  

 

    

 

Scope of Work Conditions 
 

Software Functionality 

City of Texarkana understands and acknowledges that this project will deliver a set of products as outlined 
in this Statement of Work with functionality, features, integration, and workflows which are designed to 
operate as delivered to Customer and will not be customized, modified, altered, added, or changed by Harris. 
Changes requested by City of Texarkana must be specifically identified and priced in the Order Form or a 
subsequently issued Change Order. Accordingly, City of Texarkana accepts the ERP products as-is and will 
not require functionality or feature gaps based on comparison to Customer’s existing installed applications 
or other Harris product lines; Customer’s internal workflows are subject to change to adapt to Harris 
Products.  

 

Data Ownership 

City of Texarkana shall own all data.  As the owner of the data, City of Texarkana is responsible to ensure 
the integrity, accuracy, and completeness of such data. Harris shall have no liability of any kind related to 
any error, loss of, issue, defect, or cause of action arising out of or related to such data. Harris shall provide 
City of Texarkana with pre-defined code tables, which will be delivered as-is. Any changes to the code tables 
or data conversion services are City of Texarkana’s responsibility. 

 

Cancellation Policy 

In situations where the parties have agreed on a specific date for Harris to perform training or other onsite 
or remote services (collectively, the “Scheduled Services”), City of Texarkana shall be responsible for 
adequately preparing the applicable site and ensuring availability of City of Texarkana personnel and/or 
contractors to facilitate Harris’s performance of the Scheduled Services (collectively, the “Preparation”). 

In the event City of Texarkana wishes to cancel or reschedule a scheduled site visit or the required 
preparation was not completed at the appointed time for visit, City of Texarkana shall pay to Harris (i) the 
fee for one (1) day of the scheduled services for each of the Harris personnel and authorized 
subcontractors which were to perform the scheduled services (“One-Day Service Fee”), (ii) the per diem 
services fee for travel time associated with the actual travel undertaken by Harris personnel and authorized 
subcontractors en route to the applicable Customer site (“Billable Travel Time”), and (iii) reimbursement 
for any non-refundable travel and lodging expenses incurred by Harris and authorized subcontractors in 
connection with such scheduled site visit (“Non-refundable T&E”).  

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Order Form or SOW, in the event that City of Texarkana 
provides written notice of its cancellation of a scheduled site visit at least 72 hours prior to the appointed 
date and time of the Scheduled Services, City of Texarkana shall not be required to pay the One-Day Service 
Fee referenced above in connection with such site visit, but will be required to pay any applicable Billable 
Travel Time and Non-refundable T&E. 

For avoidance of doubt, the foregoing payments relating to the One-Day Service Fee, Billable Travel Time 
and Non-refundable T&E are intended to compensate Harris for expenses associated with a lost day of 
work and related expenses. Such payments do not in any way (i) relieve either party of its obligations with 
regard to performance of and payment for the scheduled services, (ii) replace, amend, or modify any of the 



Confidential  Page 37 

terms relating to cancellation and/or change order requirements, rights and remedies set forth in this SOW 
or the Agreement that otherwise relate to the scheduled services, or (iii) grant to City of Texarkana any right 
to cancel its order for the scheduled services. 

Infrastructure Requirements (only applies to on premise deployments) 

Electrical and Network Infrastructures 

City of Texarkana’s electrical and computer network (LAN and WAN) infrastructures shall be stable and 
sufficient to meet the bandwidth requirements of the CitySuite Software solution being implemented. 
Inadequate infrastructure frequently results in less than desirable performance. If Mobile software is 
purchased, Harris is not responsible for the inability of a particular network to support features of the 
mobile software due to bandwidth restrictions. 

LAN and WAN Compliance 

Electrical and computer network (LAN and WAN) infrastructures are to be compliant and tested to latest 
industry standards by City of Texarkana.  

Software Installation 

With respect to Harris ERP Software installed at City of Texarkana’s site, so long as City of Texarkana 
remains current on annual support and maintenance fees, Harris will provide, once made generally available, 
all updates, upgrades, patches, and workarounds to the Software covered under this Agreement. City of 
Texarkana agrees to assist in the installation of such items. Any installation services requested by City of 
Texarkana  will be offered at Harris’s then-current rates. 

For all hosting solutions the software will be installed at Harris ERP’s hosting center based on the Order 
Form.  

Software Compatibility 

City of Texarkana accepts sole responsibility for any compatibility problems between the Software and any 
other application software or non-current software programs not maintained or supported by Harris ERP.  

Remote Access 

City of Texarkana shall provide Harris ERP with secure high-speed remote access with a static IP address 
to all servers and workstations running Harris ERP software. City of Texarkana will grant access rights to 
all Harris ERP personnel so designated in writing by Harris ERP as authorized by Harris ERP to need access 
rights. The high-speed access must be in place prior to the beginning of the installation process. City of 
Texarkana’s failure to provide secure high-speed remote access will be considered a material breach of the 
Agreement.  

Antivirus, Viruses, and External Threats 

The entire network must be protected with Antivirus (AV) software and shall be kept up to date by City of 
Texarkana with all the latest virus definitions and operating system patches/service packs. Harris ERP 
directories must be excluded from AV scans.  



 

Confidential  Page 38  

 

 
Software Updates 

It shall be the responsibility of City of Texarkana to maintain all operating system and firmware updates, 
including version releases, patches, and service packs for any third-party software that has been installed 
by Harris ERP.  

 

Bandwidth 

The minimum available bandwidth to each workstation should be no less than 100mbs and should be 
greater between multiple locations.  

 

Virtual Environments 

When using Virtual Machines (“VMs” running VMware or other Virtual Environments): 

• Harris is not responsible for loss of performance due to issues with VMware, Host Server workload, 
Host network bandwidth or disk storage space. 

• Harris must approve City of Texarkana –provided Virtual Environment, including hardware, number 
of virtual machines running on the host, network bandwidth, disk systems, and any other aspect of 
the Virtual Environment. 

• City of Texarkana is responsible for the hardware and hardware support for the physical server that 
runs the Virtual Machine – the VM Ware Host. 

• City of Texarkana is responsible for the support of the VMware, including but not limited to, 
licensing, updates, support, and any other issue, which VMware is related. 

• City of Texarkana will provide and procure support and maintenance of the operating system and 
database software running to the Virtual Machines. 

• Virtual Environments shall be limited to only Harris products. City of Texarkana’s production 
servers may not operate on the same Host environment as Harris’s products. 

 

Physical Security 

City of Texarkana will be responsible for the establishment of procedures to provide physical site security 
for delivered hardware and software systems and their components. This security will include protection 
from losses caused by natural threats, forced entry, acts of violence, and internal sabotage. City of 
Texarkana will be responsible for implementing procedures necessary to safeguard the integrity and 
security of the software and data used in this project from access by unauthorized persons.  

 

Network Security 

City of Texarkana will be responsible for the establishment of procedures to provide security for its 
networks, hardware and software systems, and their components. This security will include protection from 
security threats entering City of Texarkana’s IT systems through the Internet or City of Texarkana’s internal 
networks.  

 



 

Confidential  Page 39  

 

Removal of Old Hardware   

City of Texarkana is responsible for the removal of old hardware.  

 
Harris Users and Permissions Requirements  

Windows Users 

• A “service level account” is needed with Administrator permissions on each server. 

• A Domain user account (typically named CitySuite) is needed for maintenance and installation. 

• This account also needs admin permissions on each server. Not required on workstations. 

 

SQL User 

• A SQL user account needs admin permission on each server. 

• This account needs DBO rights to each database in the Harris system. This account also requires 
DB_Creator rights and ability to create new SQL logins. 

• The databases used vary depending on the products installed. 

 

Antivirus Exclusions 

• Harris must have AV exclusions set for any directory containing CitySuite software. This can 
include the following: 

o C:\CitySuite 

• Other directories may need to be excluded, depending on products installed. Detailed lists of 
excluded directories are available from Harris personnel and may depend on your environment and 
products installed.  



Confidential  Page 40 

Project Budget & Milestones 

Project Budget 
The Project Budget for this Statement of Work is a fixed price based on a forty-eight-week implementation 
and the items included in this SOW.  Services for Interfaces not listed in the contract / SOW will be 
estimated separately.  Services for these and additional items added to scope including custom reports 
will require a change control.  Any additional license or maintenance associated with interfaces or 
additional applications will be separate.   

Billing Milestones 
The Billing Milestones for this project will be on a percentage-basis of the total Project Budget. Billing 
milestone numbers do not indicate a chronological order for which they will be invoiced.   

# Milestone Description Percentage $ Value 

Licenses (includes interfaces listed in contract; additional interfaces will incur additional license fees) 

#1 Invoiced on Signing of Contract            Sub Total 100% $ 

Services (includes interfaces listed in contract; additional interfaces will incur additional fees included 
in PS Bucket of Hours) 

Financials, including Central Cash Receipts 

#2 Invoiced on Signing of Contract 20% $ 

#3 On Completion of Stage 2 – BPR / Requirements Gathering 20% $ 

#4 On Completion of Stage 4 – Data Conversion 30% $ 

#5 On Completion of Stage 5 – Testing 20% $ 

#6 Due at Stage 6 - Go-Live 10% $ 

Sub Total 100% $ 

HR & Payroll including interface with My Benefits 

#2 Invoiced on Signing of Contract 20% $ 

#3 On Completion of Stage 2 – BPR / Requirements Gathering 20% $

#7 On Completion of Stage 4 – Data Conversion 30% $ 

#8 On Completion of Stage 5 – Testing 20% $ 

#9 Due at Stage 6 - Go-Live 10% $ 



Confidential  Page 41 

Sub Total 100% $ 

Services Grand Total N/A $ 

Travel – Estimate for 17 onsite trips** 

Invoiced per employee, per trip, on a cost-recovery basis As incurred $ 

**Harris ERP can provide a copy of our travel policy & billing procedures upon request.  

Scope Changes & Change Orders 
After the Final Executed SOW, either party may request changes to this SOW that will change the project 
scope. Such a request must be accepted by the parties and be included in a formal written Change Order 
that is executed by both parties. The Change Order will serve as an amendment to the Executed SOW and 
will provide sufficient detail including the following:  

o Detailed description of resources (both City of Texarkana and Harris ERP) required to perform the
change

o Specifications
o Implementation Plans
o Schedule for completion
o Impact on current milestones and project schedule
o Cost changes and/or changes to payment schedule (if applicable)
o Impact on project goals and objectives

A sample Change Order template is provided in Appendix B – Change Order Template. 



Confidential  Page 42 

Work Hours 
All work will be performed during normal Harris ERP business hours (8:00 -18:00 CST). If services are 
required to be performed outside of these hours, an after-hours rate of $275/hour will be billed, on a time-
and-materials basis.  

Preliminary Schedule 
Harris ERP anticipates 48-week project duration from the initiation to Go-Live. Any changes in Scope or 
reduction in Customer team members’ availability may lengthen the project duration. Any delays in the 
project on the part of City of Texarkana may require a Change Order for additional Project Management 
services. Extending the time of the project may also incur additional fees.  The table below summarizes an 
example timeline. 

Phase Stage(s) Expected 
Duration Proposed Project Dates 

Discovery Initiation 

11 Weeks 

March 6 – May 19, 2023 

Onsite Kick-off & Initiate BPR:  March 7- 10, 
2023 

BPR: March 13 – May 19 

Requirements 
Gathering 

Development Configuration 16 Weeks May 22 – September 8, 2023 

Data Conversion 8 Weeks September 11 – November 3, 2023 

Training / Testing 

7 Weeks 

November 6 – December 22, 2023 

Onsite Training: November 7 – 10, 2023 

Parallel Testing: November 13 – December 22, 
2023 

Delivery Deploy (Go-Live) 

5 Weeks 

January 8 – February 9, 2024  

Go Live  

Preparation:  January 8 – 26, 2024 

Onsite Financials Go live:  January 29 – 
February 2, 2024 

*Onsite HR/Payroll Go Live: February 5 -
February 9

(*will coordinate with first pay period of go live 
month)  

The above timeline & schedule example will be used for review and discussion in determining the timeline 
for Customer and will be agreed upon by the Customer and Harris ERP.  Timeline is subject to change based 
on the availability of key Customer staff and any changes in scope, as documented in any signed Change 
Orders, or unforeseen circumstances.  Onsite visits are contingent on agreement between Customer and 
Harris.   



Confidential  Page 43 

Annual Support and Maintenance 
CitySuite Annual Hosting, Support & Maintenance* 

2023 Financials & HR/Payroll Annual Support; Upon CitySuite 
go-live full coverage maintenance will become active. 6 
months from the CitySuite go-live date, the Select solution will 
be put into inquiry only mode and terms of CitySuite 
maintenance will be effective.  

100% $ 

CitySuite Hosting - On installation of Finance/HR/Payroll in 
hosted environment. Year one 

100% $ 

Total $ 

*Harris ERP Annual Hosting, Support & Maintenance term starts per terms & conditions outlined in the
Contract. The Terms and Conditions are available in the Support Portal. Includes interfaces listed in
contract; additional interfaces will incur additional maintenance fees.



 

Confidential  Page 44  

 

Implementation Methodology 
The implementation of each Application will have three phases: Discovery, Development, and Delivery. Each 
Phase will have sub-phases, or “Stages”. This approach uses project management best practices and will 
help guide both City of Texarkana and Harris ERP team to ensure the project objectives are met.  The 
following image depicts the Project Phases, with further explanations following. 

 

             
 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase 1: Discovery  
The purpose of this Phase is to initiate the project with the assigned Project Staff and ensure that the scope 
and deliverables outlined in this Statement of Work is appropriate. By the end of this phase, City of 
Texarkana will have signed off on the functional workflows it desires to be configured within the 
Applications. There are two stages within this Phase:  

• Stage 1 - Initiation  
• Stage 2 - Requirements Gathering (BPR) 

 

The details of both Stages, including an in-depth description of the deliverables involved and the work 
needed to complete them are provided in the Scope of Work section of this Statement of Work, under 
Services Scope. 

 
Phase 2: Development  
The purpose of this Phase is to implement and test the configurations & deliverables agreed upon in the 
Discovery phase. By the end of this phase, City of Texarkana understands and accepts the configurations 
performed by Harris ERP within the Applications to achieve its desired business objectives. There are three 
stages within this Phase (continued numbering from Phase 1):  

• Stage 3 – Configuration 
• Stage 4 – Data Conversion 
• Stage 5 – Training / Testing  

 

The details of these Stages, including an in-depth description of the deliverables involved and the work 
needed to complete them are provided in the Scope of Work section of this Statement of Work, under 
Services Scope. 

Discovery Development Delivery

PH
AS

E 

Initiation Requirements 
Gathering Configuration Data 

Conversion
Testing / 
Training Deploy

ST
AG

E 



 

Confidential  Page 45  

 

 
Phase 3: Delivery  
The purpose of this Phase is to implement the configurations & processes developed jointly into City of 
Texarkana’s live environment for use by Customer staff and its citizens. By the end of this phase, the project 
will have been deemed complete. There is one stage in this Phase (continued numbering from Phase 2):  

• Stage 6 – Deploy 
 

The details of this Stage, including an in-depth description of the deliverables involved and the work needed 
to complete it are provided in the Scope of Work section of this Statement of Work, under Services Scope.  



 

Confidential  Page 46  

 

Scope of Work – Financials and Human Resources/Payroll  
 

Software Scope 
City of Texarkana is procuring the Following CitySuite Applications, including the following modules:  

Application Module 

Financials  General Ledger EXCLUDES Grants & Projects 

Accounts Payable 

Purchasing/Requisitions 

Budget Preparation 

Central Cash Receipts 

HR & Payroll  Human Resources & Payroll 

Federal, State & Local Reporting 

 

Any other modules that City of Texarkana wishes to implement that are not listed above will incur additional 
services costs and would be documented via a Change Order. 

 

Services Scope 
 

COVID-19 Considerations 

With the risks and uncertainty surrounding COVID-19 and any government restrictions in place at the time 
of execution, services will be scheduled and provided remotely. Where social & travel restrictions have 
been lessened, City of Texarkana and Harris ERP agree to modify the scope of services via a change order 
to account for any additional costs required for on-site meetings.  

 

Detailed Description 

City of Texarkana is procuring the following services as part of the agreed upon Statement of Work:  

• Project Management Services  
o Provide oversight, tracking, and guidance of the project to ensure successful delivery in 

accordance with the SOW 
o Enforce and administer the Agreement and the SOW inclusive of any project change orders 

and invoices 
o Assist in the resolution of issues and/or escalations that may arise over the course of the 

project 
• Application Consultant Services  



 

Confidential  Page 47  

 

o Documentation & recommendation of business processes agreed upon with City of 
Texarkana 

o Configuration of the Application(s) as agreed to with City of Texarkana 
o Preliminary testing of configurations in test  
o Assist City of Texarkana with Functional testing  
o Deliver Subject Matter Expert Training to City of Texarkana’s staff 
o Work with City of Texarkana to implement any purchased interfaces 

 

The delivery of the above services is detailed in the following sections and are broken into six Stages:  

Stage 1 – Initiation 

Stage 2 – Requirements Gathering 

Stage 3 – Configuration 

Stage 4 – Data Conversion 

Stage 5 – Testing 

Stage 6 – Deploy  

 

  



 

Confidential  Page 48  

 

Phase 1 - Discovery 
 
Stage 1 – Initiation 

City of Texarkana Project Manager and Harris ERP Project Manager will coordinate and schedule a Kick-
Off Meeting with all Project Staff as identified in this Statement of Work. The Kick-off Meeting will 
communicate the following:  

• Key Team Members 
• Scope of Work 
• Project Escalation Chain 
• High Level Timeline/Schedule 
• Review Milestones 
• Next Steps & Meetings 

 

Outcomes:  

Delivery/Milestone Deliverable Type Customer 
Responsibility 

Harris ERP 
Responsibility 

Project Team Assembly Action Yes Yes 

Kick-off Agenda & 
Presentation 

Document Yes Yes 

Completion of Kick-off 
Meeting 

Action Yes Yes 

 

Assumptions: 

o Kick-off presentation will be drafted & presented together by City of Texarkana Project Manager 
and Harris ERP Project Manager. Harris ERP will provide a presentation template to be used 
collaboratively 

o A copy of the agenda will be circulated with attendees prior to the meeting 
o A copy of the final agenda will be circulated after the meeting to all attendees 
o The project team members identified within this Statement of Work for City of Texarkana must 

attend the kick-off meeting 
 

Stage 2 – Requirements & Data Gathering 

Following the Kick-off Meeting, City of Texarkana Project Manager and Harris ERP Project Manager will 
coordinate a meeting for the appropriate Project Team Lead(s) to meet with the Application Consultant to 
conduct a Business Process Review (BPR) to review and document City of Texarkana’s existing challenges 
with current processes and workflows for the Applications.  

For a successful BPR meeting, the Application Consultant will provide Application Questionnaires for the 
Project Team Lead and SMEs to complete. The questionnaires are required to be completed prior to the 
BPR to help the Application Consultant prepare an agenda for the BPR meeting. 

 

Workflow Scope 



 

Confidential  Page 49  

 

As part of the Business Process Review, the Application Consultant will work with the appropriate Team 
Members to determine required specific configurations of the Applications.  Any changes that City of 
Texarkana wishes to make to the workflows that differ from the approved BPR Report may require a Change 
Order for additional services.  

 
Reporting Scope 

Harris ERP will provide City of Texarkana with standard reports.  It is assumed that the configurations made 
as part of the Business Process Reviews will provide City of Texarkana with the appropriate data it requires. 
Modifications to the standard reports will be evaluated during the respective Business Process Review. 
Any custom reports or modifications identified as part of the Business Process Review will require a 
Change Order. 

 

Interface Scope 
 
The City of Texarkana has requested an interface with My Benefits Channel for employee pay stubs only to 

be posted to. Any new requests for imports and/or interfaces not included in the contract or SOW will be 
considered out of scope and subject to additional services and fees. 

 

Application  Interfaces Listed in Contract Interfaces Not Listed in Contract 

Financials  Not Applicable  

HR & Payroll  My Benefits Employee Portal for Pay Stubs 
only 

 

 
If City of Texarkana wants to include any other imports and /or interfaces or third-party software, a Change 
Order will be required to modify the scope of work.  

Development Scope 

There is the potential for additional development services to be identified during any project. There are no 
development services included in this project. Where City of Texarkana identifies a need for additional 
functionality to be developed, Harris ERP and City of Texarkana will work together to document the 
requirements. A Software Development Requirements (SDR) document will be prepared and agreed to and 
will be accompanied by a signed Change Order including any fee for services before any development 
services begin.  

Harris ERP reserves the right to determine whether to proceed with the development wherein such 
determination shall be in Harris ERP’s sole commercial discretion. Any such development shall be the sole 
property of Harris ERP. City of Texarkana acknowledges that a change order may be required for additional 
services for the Application Consultant to develop the SDR, regardless if City of Texarkana elects to 
implement and purchase the desired functionality or not. 

 

 

  



 

Confidential  Page 50  

 

Outcomes: 

Delivery/Milestone Deliverable Type Customer 
Responsibility 

Harris ERP 
Responsibility 

Application Specific 
Questionnaire 

Document Yes (to complete) Yes (to provide) 

Application Specific 
Questionnaire Review 

Action Yes Yes 

Examples of System & State 
Reporting 

Documents Yes  

Data Extracts from Current 
System for Data Conversion 
including Historical Payroll 
Checks 

Documents Yes  

 

Assumptions: 

o The Project Team Lead and any SMEs as needed from City of Texarkana are required to attend 
o The Harris ERP Application Consultant will lead the discussion and document all findings 
o The Project Team Lead & SMEs will be responsible for signing off on the Questionnaire  
o The Questionnaire report will be provided to all stakeholders  
o The project will not proceed until the Questionnaire has been accepted by City of Texarkana & 

Harris ERP 
o The Questionnaire & Reports provided by City of Texarkana may identify additional services, 

interfaces, functionalities that are not covered in this Statement of Work. If City of Texarkana 
wishes to incorporate those aspects into the project, a Change Order will be created and agreed to 
by both parties.  

 

Stage 2 – Requirements Gathering Completion – Billing Milestone  
Phase 1 Stage 2 will be deemed complete upon signing of the BPR Report by City of Texarkana or the 10-
calendar day timeframe for acceptance has passed. This will also trigger the following Billing Milestones: 

This will also trigger the following Billing Milestones: 

Application Milestone Payment # 

Finance #3 

Human Resources/Payroll #3 

 



 

Confidential  Page 51  

 

 
Phase 2 Development 
 
Stage 3 – Configuration 

During this stage, the Application Consultant will configure the Applications in City of Texarkana’s test 
environment to the specifications and workflows contained in the BPR Report. Where applicable, 
configurations will be developed with the Project Team Lead to facilitate knowledge transfer. This will 
enable City of Texarkana to maintain and update the Application based on changes in processes and 
workflows on its own. Further training to City of Texarkana will be provided in the Testing Stage.  

 

Harris ERP will provide documentation on the general functionality of the Application’s Configuration 
settings. It is City of Texarkana’s responsibility to document its preferences of those functionalities that 
are not already documented in the BPR Report.   

 

Delivery/Milestone Deliverable Type Customer 
Responsibility 

Harris ERP 
Responsibility 

Configure Applications per 
Questionnaire 

Action Yes Yes 

Configuration Walkthroughs Action Yes Yes 

 

Assumptions 

• All configurations will be completed in City of Texarkana’s test environment  
 

Stage 4 – Data Conversion 
The purpose of this section is to define the scope of data to be converted as part of the implementation. 
Additionally, a high-level description of the conversion process is given. The information below will be 
incorporated in the Data Conversion Plan that will be developed during, and used for, the Project.  

 

Data Sources 
The legacy Finance and HR/Payroll Solution is Select. 

 

Time Period 
Historical data will include transactions for the year of Go Live and one year prior.  For finance, this can be 
either calendar or fiscal and for payroll, this will be calendar. 

 

  



 

Confidential  Page 52  

 

Data to be Converted 
The following information is included in the scope of work 

Financials Configuration Historical Data 

General Ledger    Chart of Accounts  
 

Opening Balance  
GL Transactions  

Accounts Payable Vendors 
AP Configuration 

 

Historical AP 
Historical Checks 
Open Invoices 
Form 1099 Data 
PCard Transactions 

Budgeting N/A Budget  
Budget Adjustments 

 Purchasing/Requisitions Purchasing Configuration Open Purchase Orders  
 

 

HR & Payroll Configuration Historical Data 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HR / Payroll 

Assignments & Authorizations 
Courses 
Cost Centers 
Custom Dates 
Departments 
Employee-Assignment Accruals 
Employee-Assignment Items                       
  -   Deductions, Taxes, Employer 
Fringe 
Employee-Demographics 
Employee-Dependents 
Employee-Direct Deposit 
Employee-Distribution Accounts 
Employee-Emergency Contacts 
Pay Rates-Base & Additional Rates 
Pay Rates-Salary Matrix 
Payroll Banks 
Position Setup 

Activity Logs 
Assignment Accruals-Beginning Balance 
Assignment Activity 
Awards 
Check History Detail 
Check History Header 
Check Reconciliations 
Employee Pay Rate History 
Grievances  
Incidents  
Reviews  
Screenings  
Status History  
 

 

*Any other items or additional historical data that City of Texarkana wishes to have converted may require 
additional services, and therefore a Change Order to modify the Scope of Work.  

Overview of Conversion Process 
City of Texarkana is responsible for extracting all legacy data into a series of CSV or Excel file formats that 
will be used for each conversion based on the specifications provided by Harris. 

The Harris Application Consultant will provide the City of Texarkana with the import spreadsheets 
specifications for conversion. City of Texarkana is responsible for data extract, data manipulation, and 
populating the CitySuite import spreadsheets. No changes can be made to the import templates. The 



 

Confidential  Page 53  

 

Application Consultant can provide answers to questions regarding the import spreadsheets. Harris ERP 
will teach City of Texarkana to import the data into the Application, to enable and empower them to convert 
more historical data into the system on their own. If City of Texarkana requires additional assistance, or 
additional conversions, then a Change Order may be required.  

Customer shall own all data. As owner of such data, City of Texarkana is responsible to ensure the integrity, 
accuracy, and completeness of such data. Harris ERP shall have no liability of any kind related to any error, 
loss of, issue, defect, or cause of action arising out of or related to such data. 

 

Outcomes 

Delivery/Milestone Deliverable Type Customer 
Responsibility 

Harris ERP 
Responsibility 

Import Spreadsheets Document Yes   

Conversion Coaching Action Yes Yes 

Data Extracts from Current 
System for Data Conversion 

Documents Yes  

 

Stage 4 Data Conversion Billing Milestone 
Upon successful conversions of the prior calendar year’s data into the applicable CitySuite applications, 
the following Billing Milestones will be triggered: 

Application Milestone Payment # 

Finance #4 

Human Resources/Payroll #7 

 

Stage 5 – Testing / Training 
To ensure successful testing of the Applications, SME Training must occur. This SME Training will be 
delivered to those users identified in the BPR Report with the goal of familiarizing them with the new 
processes and workflows. This SME Training is required to complete the functional testing requirements 
expected of City of Texarkana. At a minimum, the Project Team Lead must attend the SME Training. 

 

The purpose of SME Training is to train the core project team on the new/existing functionality that will be 
used to create or change workflows and processes. Attendees of this training should include the Project 
Team Lead and SMEs who will manage major functions of the Applications. The lessons will instruct 
trainees on how to execute business processes within the Applications. This training may include 
introductory or basic training to users unfamiliar with the Applications. The SME Training will occur 
throughout this Stage and will vary depending on the size and availability of the individuals selected by City 
of Texarkana and the number of new workflows and processes being implemented. The training will be a 
combination of formal training sessions and ad-hoc training, where questions arise during testing.  



 

Confidential  Page 54  

 

 

Once the SME Training has occurred, the Application Consultant and the Project Team Lead will develop 
test plan documents jointly.  The test plan will be designed to evaluate the outcomes of the configurations 
performed by the Application Consultant. City of Texarkana will have 30 calendar days to complete testing 
of any functionality once made available in the test environment. The progress of testing will be monitored 
via the testing plan.  

 

The Application Consultant will perform limited functional testing based on business-critical processes to 
ensure sufficient functionality before City of Texarkana executes functional testing. The Project Team 
Leads or SMEs (where applicable) will then perform functional testing; this entails testing individual 
workflows or specific modifications to ensure accurate functionality and results. If specific workflows or 
functions are not working as expected, then City of Texarkana must notify the Application Consultant with 
the details of the issue.  

 

The Application Consultant, with the Project Lead, will track any issues identified and the resolution(s) 
taken to resolve the issue. Harris ERP expects City of Texarkana to re-test the issue to confirm resolution. 

 

Delivery/Milestone Deliverable Type Customer 
Responsibility 

Harris ERP 
Responsibility 

SME / Core Team Training Action  Yes 

Testing Checklist Document Yes Yes 

Initial Configuration Testing Action  Yes 

Functional Testing  Action Yes  

Issue Identification & 
Tracking 

Document Yes Yes 

Issue Resolution Action Yes Yes 

Stylesheet: Standard Check  Document Yes Yes 

 

Assumptions:  

• All SME Training & testing of workflows and processes will be performed in City of Texarkana’s 
test environment 

• The Project Team Lead will sign off on issue resolution and the testing plan on behalf of City of 
Texarkana 

• City of Texarkana Project Manager and Project Team Lead are responsible for creating a Functional 
Testing schedule, either on a day-by-day or week-by-week basis, depending on the amount of 
testing and personnel required to complete the testing 

• Weekly status calls to assess progress and address issues may be required to ensure timely 
completion 



 

Confidential  Page 55  

 

• If City of Texarkana does not complete testing within the 30-calendar day timeframe, then the 
configurations will be deemed accepted. If issues arise due to incomplete or lack of testing, then 
delays in the project timeline are likely to occur, and require additional work for both parties is 
anticipated, and would require a change order for those additional services.   

• For stylesheets configuration there will be 3 conversions (initial, corrective, final.) The final 
conversion will be done before go- live. There will be no changes (additional data sources, import 
templates) to the stylesheets after the corrective conversion. Additional conversions or 
customizations of the standard stylesheets will require a change order for additional services.  

• Any state reporting forms that will require significant modifications or development within the 
Application may warrant a Change Order – the state reporting forms must be provided to Harris 
ERP as soon as possible during the Requirements Gathering (BP) Stage. 

 

Stage 5 – Testing & Training Completion Billing Milestone 
Phase 2 Stage 5 will be deemed complete when City of Texarkana agrees in writing that: 1) the 
configurations agreed to in the Questionnaires and State Reporting perform as agreed to and 2) data 
conversions are completed, or the 10-calendar day timeframe for acceptance has passed. This will also 
trigger the following Billing Milestones: 

Application Milestone Payment # 

Finance #5 

Human Resources/Payroll #8 

 

Phase 3 Delivery 
 
Stage 6 – Deploy  

This stage includes transition planning, end-user training, go live preparation, and go live support. During 
this final stage City of Texarkana will conduct end user trainer while the Project Managers will jointly work 
with team and departments on finalizing transition plans for the go live.   Go live indicates that business 
operations and processes are being performed by the Applications and is the primary system of record for 
City of Texarkana.  

 

During the week of Go-Live, a daily wrap-up meeting will be held. This meeting will be facilitated by the 
Project Managers with the primary goal to review activities of the day and report any issues. This meeting 
is to be attended by the Harris ERP and Customer Project Teams. Everyone shall report on the events of 
the day, any problem areas, and goals for the next day. This meeting will serve as an important vehicle for 
sharing information across the Project Team, especially when remote locations are a factor. 

 

Delivery/Milestone Deliverable Type Customer 
Responsibility 

Harris ERP 
Responsibility 

Deploy Configurations to Live Environment Action Yes Yes 



 

Confidential  Page 56  

 

End User Training Action Yes *No  

Go-Live Support Action Yes Yes 

Go-Live Schedule  Document Yes Yes 

Issue(s) Tracking Document Yes Yes 

Issue(s) Resolution Action Yes Yes 

 

Assumptions 

*If City of Texarkana determines they would like Harris ERP’s assistance with end user training, a 
change order will be executed. 

Go-Live Support (remote or onsite) will be provided by the Harris Application Consultant(s) for the first 
five (5) business days, during Regular Work Hours.  (Special arrangements are required if weekend 
support is required and additional fees may be required.)   

After these five days, the implementation team will continue to be first line of support remotely for a 
period not to exceed 30 calendar days. 

The Harris ERP Project Manager will assist and coordinate any additional activities and/or meetings as 
required 

 

End User Training Scope 

It is City of Texarkana’s responsibility to provide end user training within 30 days prior to going live.  Subject 
Matter Experts (SME) typically conduct the end user training.  If City of Texarkana would like assistance of 
Harris ERP to conduct end user training, a change order will be executed, and the additional bucket of hours 
will be used.   

 

Phase 3 – Delivery Completion Billing Milestone 
If City of Texarkana would like assistance of Harris ERP to conduct end user training, a change order will 
be executed, and additional bucket of hours will be used.  Phase 3 will be deemed complete on the fifth day 
of Go-Live Support. The Harris ERP Project Manager will deliver a Go Live Customer Acceptance Form (CAF) 
to City of Texarkana Project Manager as formal documentation that all items within the Statement of Work 
have been delivered.  Any exceptions will be listed in the Go Live Customer Acceptance Form.  The following 
Billing Milestones will be triggered upon Customer acceptance, or the 10-calendar day timeframe has 
passed.  
 

Application Milestone Payment # 

Finance #6 

Human Resources/Payroll #9 



 

Confidential  Page 57  

 

  
Post-Live Support 

Post live support will continue by Harris Implementation team for a period of 30 calendar days post live.  A 
call will be scheduled with City of Texarkana, Harris implementation team and Harris Customer Support to 
review any outstanding go live issues and handover ongoing support to Customer Support.   

Assumptions: 

After transition to Support, City of Texarkana is expected to contact Customer Support.  If additional 
training is required, City of Texarkana will be required to procure additional training services via a 
Change Order.  

After completion of Go-Live City of Texarkana will assume primary responsibility of the Applications 
and its day-to-day management and support. City of Texarkana will be responsible for primary support 
of business processes and end users. 

  

Version Requirements 
City of Texarkana must ensure its test and live environments are on the same versions, and those versions 
must be the most recent and available CitySuite version. Delays in doing so would delay the project 
schedule and may require a change order for additional services.  

 
Limits and Exclusions 

Harris ERP will not perform the following during implementation:  

o Implementation of products or delivery of services not listed on the signed Quote or Statement of 
Work.  

o Setup of additional system environments and databases 
o Troubleshooting issues relating to City of Texarkana’s IT infrastructure. 
o Implement, install, maintain, or repair third-party software, servers, workstations, or any other 

hardware 
 
 

  



 

Confidential  Page 58  

 

APPENDIX A – Specific Questions for Review 

 
 

  



 

Confidential  Page 59  

 

APPENDIX B – Change Order Template 
 

Change Order Request 

Title  

Requested By  Submitted To  

Change Order Request #  Priority  

Requested Date  Response 
Required Date  

Description of 
Requested Change  

Justification for Change   

Impact of Not Making 
the Change  

 
Change Order Response 

Response By  Submitted To  

Response Date  

Proposed Resolution  

Work Effort  

 

 

 

  



 

Confidential  Page 60  

 

Project Management Analysis 

Risk / Cost if Approved 

 

 

 

Risk / Cost if NOT 
Approved 

 

Impact to Project 
Schedule 

 

Total Cost and Payment 
Terms 

 

 

The above change request has been submitted, assessed, and approved by the individuals below Signed 
Approval of this document indicates the change described may be executed as described.  

   

 

Signed: ___________________________________  Date:______________________________ 
 Customer Executive Sponsor 

             

 

Signed: ___________________________________  Date:______________________________ 
 Customer Project Manager 

                 

 

Signed: ___________________________________  Date:______________________________ 
 Harris ERP Executive Sponsor  

                  

 

Signed: __________________________________  Date:______________________________ 
 Harris Project Manager 

 

  



 

Confidential  Page 61  

 

APPENDIX C – BUSINESS PROCESS REVIEW (BPR) TEMPLATE 

INTRODUCTION 

<Client> has contracted with Harris ERP to implement the Financials Application of the CitySuite Solution. 
<Client>  currently utilizes the <Legacy> for their Financial Software application.   Business process review 
meetings were held from <dates of BPR Period>, to obtain the information as outlined in this document.  

The Financials Application includes the following modules which are subject to contracted applications: 

Entity, Chart of Accounts, General Ledger, Budgeting, Purchasing, Accounts Payable, Fixed Assets, 
Projects and Grants, Inventory, Accounts Receivable, Cash Receipts, Reporting, Interfaces 

OVERVIEW 

This document describes and evaluates the current practices/technology associated with the Fixed Assets 
and provides recommendations for process improvements to help the organization attain its objectives 
though the utilization of the applications in CitySuite.  

 

Document Control  

Version Date Author(s) Description 
1.0    
    
    

 

Analysis Team 

Name  Subject Matter Expert Area(s) 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 

 
 
 
 



 

Confidential  Page 62  

 

<MODULE> SETUP 

 

Process Objectives 

Objectives associated with the process and how they are aligned to the overall process goal 

 

• To configure the module of the application as outlined in the Financial Questionnaire 
 

Current Process Description  

Below are the entity settings as discussed in the Finance Module of the CitySuite Application.    

• Entity  
• Address Information 

• Client Legal Name:   
• Physical Address:  
• Mailing Address:  
• Phone Number  
• Website  

• Tax Information 
• Federal Tax ID  
• State Tax ID  

• Fiscal Year 
• <fiscal year> 
• 12 Periods 

• Accounting Methods 
• Methods: Modified Accrual 

• PO Encumbrances are recognized 
• Pre-Encumbrances are recognized 

• Bank Information 
• Pooled Cash is utilized 

• Reporting  
• Financial Reports 

Process Improvements & Changes 

Recommendations for process enhancements based on the internal and external discussions with the 
<Client> and Harris ERP consultant. 
 
All entity configurations will be reviewed and completed using the Configuration Workbook(s) supplied to 
client during the Configuration Phase of the project. 
 
 

Task Recommendation   



 

Confidential  Page 63  

 

  
  
  

 

Client Comments: Date:  
 
 

 

Application Consultant Follow Up Comments: Date:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 64 

 

 


	Top
	1.	minutes
	item_3_04172023_ccd_minutes
	item_2_04032023_minutes

	2.	airport reimbursement
	item_04172023_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds
	Item 2 Airport FIN
	item_04172023_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds

	3.	grant_for_workshop
	item_4_04172023_pwdpl_agenda item grant 23-CLG-06
	Item 3 Local Grant
	item_04172023_pwdpl_grant training
	item_04172023_pwdpl_Grant Agreement
	item_04172023_pwdpl_grant_comments and photo sheet for 1801 Beech

	4.	U of A Way Sewer Extension Project
	item_04172023_twu_U of A Way Sewer Extension
	Item 4 U of A Way
	item_04172023_twu_Bid Tab UofA Way Sewer Extension ATTH02
	U of A Way Sewer Extension Bid Summary ATTH01

	5.	tapd - 9 vehicles
	item_04172023_tapd
	Item Police Vehicles
	item_04172023_tapd_purchase request form
	item_04172023_tapd_mclarty invoice

	6.	Acting CM compensation
	Item 6 City Man

	7.	Union Station
	item_04172023_fin_Union Station Contribution of $200,000 to Texarkana, TX
	Item 6 Union Stn
	item_04172023_fin_Union Station Contribution of $200,000 to Texarkana, TX

	8.	Harris agreements
	item_8_04172023_fin_form_Harris Master License Agreement for Support and Services, Hosting Agreement, and Quote for Additional Years of Conversion
	Item 7 Software
	item_04172023_fin_Harris Accounting Software, Additional Years Conversion Quote
	item_8_04172023_fin_Harris Hosting Agreement_Texarkana 030723
	item_8_04172023_fin_Harris Master License Support and Services_Texarkana 032323

	Bottom

